
 
Tony Kershaw 

Director of Law and Assurance 

 
If calling please ask for: 
 

Tracey Guinea on 033 022 28679 
Email:  tracey.guinea@westsussex.gov.uk 
 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 
 

 
County Hall  
Chichester 

West Sussex 
PO19 1RQ 

Switchboard  
Tel no (01243) 777100 

 

 

 

 19 February 2021 
 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee 

 
A meeting of the committee will be held at 10.30 am on Tuesday, 2 March 

2021 at Virtual meeting with restricted public access. 
 
 

Tony Kershaw 
Director of Law and Assurance 

 
The meeting will be available to view live via the Internet at this 

address: 

 
http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
 Agenda 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

 
Members and officers must declare any pecuniary or personal interest in any 
business on the agenda. They should also make declarations at any stage such 

an interest becomes apparent during the meeting. Consideration should be 
given to leaving the meeting if the nature of the interest warrants it. If in doubt, 

contact Democratic Services before the meeting. 
 

2. Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee  (Pages 5 - 14) 

 
The Committee is asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 

2 February 2021 (cream paper). 
 

3. Urgent Matters   

 
Items not on the agenda that the Chairman of the Committee is of the opinion 

should be considered as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances. 
 

4. Planning Application: Minerals  (Pages 15 - 64) 

 
Report by Head of Planning Services. 

 
The Committee is asked to consider and determine the following application: 
 

WSCC/045/20 – Temporary permission for exploration and appraisal 
comprising the removal of drilling fluids and subsequent engineering 

works with an extended well test for hydrocarbons along with site 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


security fencing and site restoration.  Lower Stumble Exploration Site, 

London Road, Balcombe RH17 6JH. 
 

5. Update on Mineral, Waste and Regulation 3 Planning Applications  

(Pages 65 - 68) 
 

The Committee is asked to note the schedule of County Matter applications and 
the schedule of applications submitted under the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992 – Regulation 3. 

 
6. Delegated Action - Planning Applications  (Pages 69 - 70) 

 
The Committee is asked to note the report of applications approved subject to 
conditions under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Regulation 3 of 

the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 1992 since the Planning 
and Rights of Way Committee meeting on 2 February 2021. 

 
7. Current Applications and Actions - Path Orders and Consultations  

(Pages 71 - 74) 

 
Report by the Director of Highways, Transport and Planning, Place Services. 

 
The Committee is asked to note the schedule of creations and permissive path 
proposals, diversions and extinguishment applications and District Council 

consultations. 
 

8. Delegated Actions - Path Orders and Consultations  (Pages 75 - 76) 
 

Report by the Director of Highways, Transport and Planning, Place Services. 
 
The Committee is asked to note the report of delegated actions - creations and 

permissive path proposals, diversions and extinguishment applications and 
District Council consultations. 

 
 

9. Current Applications - Definitive Map Modification Orders and Town and 

Village Green Applications  (Pages 77 - 80) 
 

Report by the Director of Law and Assurance. 
 
The Committee is asked to note the schedule of Definitive Map Modification 

Orders and Town and Village Green Applications. 
 

10. Delegated Actions - Definitive Map Modification Orders and Town and 
Village Green Applications  (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

Report by the Director of Law and Assurance. 
 

The Committee is asked to note the report of delegated actions - Definitive Map 
Modification Orders and town and village green applications. 
 

 
 

Page 2



11. Date of Next Meeting   

 
The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30 am on Tuesday, 
30 March 2021. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

To all members of the Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
 

 

 
 

Webcasting 
 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

County Council’s website on the internet - at the start of the meeting the Chairman 
will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed.  The images and sound 

recording may be used for training purposes by the Council. 
 
Generally the public gallery is not filmed.  However, by entering the meeting room and 

using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible 
use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning and Rights of Way Committee 
 

2 February 2021 – At a meeting of the Committee held at Virtual meeting with 
restricted public access. 
 

Present: Cllr High (Chairman) 

 
Cllr Kitchen, Cllr Atkins, Cllr Baldwin, Cllr Barrett-Miles, Cllr Burrett, 
Cllr Goldsmith, Cllr McDonald, Cllr Millson, Cllr Montyn, Cllr S Oakley, Cllr Patel 

and Cllr Sudan 
 

Apologies were received from  
 
Absent:  

 
Also in attendance:  

 
Part I 

 

1.    Declarations of Interest  
 

1.1 In accordance with the County Council’s Code of Conduct, the 
following interests were declared: 
 

 Councillor Kitchen and Councillor Baldwin both declared a 

personal interest in planning application WSCC/049/20 Horsham 

Fire Station and Training Centre, as Councillors for Horsham 

District Council. 

 

2.    Minutes of last Meeting of Planning Committee  
 

2.1 Resolved - That  
 

(1) the Committee requires that Council Officers and the Chairman 

consider a request for updates on outstanding applications and 
delegated decisions for planning matters be provided either at 

each meeting of Planning and Rights of Way Committee or 
circulated to Committee members between meetings; and 

 
(2) the minutes of Planning Committee held on 8 September 2020 

be agreed as a correct record, and that they be signed by the 

Chairman. 
 

 
3.    Minutes of the last meeting of Rights of Way Committee  

 

3.1 Resolved - That  
 

(1) the Committee requires that Council Officers and the Chairman 
consider a request for updates on rights of way matters – 
outstanding actions and delegated decisions – be provided 

either at each meeting of Planning and Rights of Way 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Committee or circulated to Committee members between 

meetings; and 
 
(2) the minutes of minutes of Rights of Way Committee held on 

3 November 2020 be agreed as a correct record, and that they 
be signed by the Chairman. 

 
4.    Urgent Matters  

 

4.1 There were no urgent matters. 
 

5.    Planning Application: Regulation 3  
 

5.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution on Planning and 

Probity on Planning and Rights of Way, Councillor Millson relinquished her 
seat as a member of Planning and Rights of Way Committee in order to 

speak on the application as the local member, County Councillor for 
Horsham Riverside.  Councillor Millson took no part in the debate and 
voting on the application. 

 
5.2 The Committee considered a report by the Head of Planning 

Services, as amended by Agenda Update Sheet No. 2, which incorporated 
all previous updates listed in the original Agenda Update sheet (copies 
appended to the signed copy of the minutes).  The report was introduced 

by Edward Anderson, who gave a presentation on the proposals, details of 
the consultation and key issues in respect of the application. 

 
5.3 Mrs Trudie Mitchell, Chairman, Horsham Denne Neighbourhood 

Council (HDNC) spoke on the application and raised some objections.  In 
general, HDNC supports the application and appreciates amendments 
made to reduce the overall size of building.  The gold coloured metal 

cladding on the Live Fire Training tower is building is too garish; the tower 
and proposed colour are completely out of character with the location and 

existing building materials, and because the building faces the setting sun 
there are safety concerns for traffic on the adjacent A24.  A more subdued 
colour should be considered.  Highwood roundabout presents problems for 

both motorists and pedestrians.  Confusing lane markings on the slip road 
approaching the roundabout means motorists switch lanes unexpectedly.  

It is very difficult to access the only footpath to Broadbridge Heath due to 
poor sight lines at the crossing points and the 40mph speed limit means 
vehicles approach too quickly for safe crossing.  Problems will be 

exacerbated by the introduction of emergency vehicles and fire station 
traffic.  It was suggested that traffic signals should be installed during 

construction of the development. 
 
5.4 Mr John Lacey, Assistant Chief Fire Officer, West Sussex Fire and 

Rescue Service (WSFRS) spoke in support of the application.  Fire fighter 
training is mandatory and currently this is either undertaken at small fire 

stations or outside the county.  West Sussex has no purpose-built, 
specialist training facility. This would be the first new fire station in West 
Sussex since 1974.  Fire training has had to change to meet new risks and 

realistic training needs to be delivered, which needs to be done in a safe 
environment.  The development is designed to be a centre of excellence, 

using state of the art technology and training delivery methods.  The 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



facility would also address some of the matters raised in the 2018 HMIC 

inspection by providing facilities that attract a more diverse workforce.  
The site has been identified in planning policy for over a decade and was 
included in the outline planning permission for Highwood village.  WSRFS 

has engaged the community in plans for the site and will continue to do so 
during construction and operation.  The development has been adapted to 

make it more ascetically pleasing and to be environmentally sustainable.  
The development is sited near the major road network to allow quick 
access to road traffic incidents, this saving time and lives.  The automated 

lights will reduce the need for the use of sirens.  Training outdoors will 
comply with noise emissions regulations and no outdoors training will take 

place between 22.00 and 07.00 hours; however, any changes to these 
times would not make the training centre viable. 
 

5.5 Councillor Morwen Millson, County Councillor for Horsham Riverside 
spoke on the application as the local member.  Residents regularly raise 

concerns about the exit from Highwood development onto the roundabout 
and about the speed of traffic exiting the estate and also speed on the A24 
slip road, which is often in excess of the 40mph limit.  Pedestrians and 

cyclists find it impossible to cross at this junction.  The Fire Station 
development may make the problem worse, although it is acknowledged 

that there would not be that many additional traffic movements.  The 
junction needs improving although the lack of money to do so is noted, 
but there may be enough community support to put forward a proposal for 

a Community Highways scheme.  The Risk Assessment recognises an 
increased safety risk, so this remains a concern.  The information provided 

in the Transport Assessment about likely car sharing, use of other modes 
of transport to the site and use of mini-buses for trainees needs to 

investigated.  A condition was proposed: that the applicant works closely 
with West Sussex Highways to solve the perceived safety issues at the 
junction between the Boulevard and roundabout with the A24 Slip road, 

and that ameliorative measures should be introduced during the 
construction period.  Otherwise, the condition recommended by Trudie 

Mitchell would be supported. 
 
5.6 In response to points made by speakers, Planning Officers clarified 

that the Committee report provided details about highways capacity and 
road safety.  Pre-existing issues relating to the Highwood roundabout and 

the A24 do not arise out of the construction of the proposed development 
and so cannot be considered as material to determination of this 
application.  It would not be for the developer to resolve these issues.  A 

Highway Safety Audit has been submitted and has been considered as part 
of this application process and consultation with Highways and Horsham 

Environmental Health had shown no overriding concerns. 
 
5.7 During the debate the Committee raised the points below and a 

response or clarification was provided by the Planning, Highways and 
Legal Officers, where applicable. 

 
Cladding on the Live Fire Training Facility (LFTF) 
 

Points raised – The reason for the choice of gold coloured cladding 
on the LFTF was queried.  The proposed gold cladding would be a 

distraction to motorists on the A24.  The proposed colour does not 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



match the surrounding landscape or buildings.  It was suggested 

that the cladding colour should be a more muted colour; green or 
muted gold were suggested.  It was suggested that a new condition 
be added on the matter of cladding, for the purposes of visibility 

and consultation, and it was agreed by the Committee that the local 
member be consulted regarding the choice of cladding colour.  It 

was further suggested and agreed by the Committee that the 
Chairman and Vice-chairman of Planning and Rights of Way 
Committee should also be consulted. 

 
Responses – The reason for the proposed gold colour for the mesh 

cladding on the LFTF is to obscure views of fire fighters training on 
the gantries.  The fire protective uniforms worn by the fire fighters 
is a buff/gold colour, and the similar colour of the cladding would 

help to minimise to distraction, particularly to motorists using the 
A24.  Horsham District Council’s Landscaping Officer noted that the 

colour could be seen as indicative of summer fields.  However, it 
was agreed the matter of choice of colour is subjective.  The 
Committee was encouraged to provide an indication of preferred 

choice of colour to give direction to the developer.  It was clarified 
that it was not possible to specify by condition that a particular 

colour of cladding be defined because the developer would need to 
consider the matter and provide options.  It was confirmed that the 
local member and the Chairman and Vice-chairman of Planning and 

Rights of Way Committee would be consulted on the choice of 
cladding colour should a condition be proposed and agreed by the 

Committee that would require details of the cladding material for 
the Live Fire Training Facility to be submitted to and approved by 

the Planning Authority. 
 
Named contact for community engagement during 

construction 
 

Point raised –   It was noted that it is encouraging that the local 
community would be able to engage with the process and that there 
would be a named contact for anyone with concerns to raise, as per 

the Construction and Environmental Management Plan. 
 

Response – None required. 
 
Highways safety – A24 and Highwood Mill roundabout 

 
Points raised – The existing issues regarding the A24 and the 

Highwood roundabout, as highlighted by Mrs Mitchell and Cllr 
Millson, were noted, and broad concerns were expressed about 
safety in this location. 

 
Responses – Points regarding existing concerns about the A24 and 

Highwood roundabout are covered in minute 5.6 above.  It was 
confirmed that a road safety audit was undertaken at the time of 
planning permission for the wider Highwood/West of Horsham 

development; the design was based on the traffic assumptions for 
the development, which included provision for a fire station this 

proposed site.   The accident record for the Highwood interchange 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



does not show a problem, although it is acknowledged that 

residents may have difficulties getting out of the junction from the 
Highwood Hill development.  
 

Highways safety – A24 access to the Fire Station and 
Training Centre development 

 
Points raised – Clarification was sought on the impact of fire 
tenders exiting and entering the site via access by the A24 slip 

road.  A query was raised about what is to prevent other vehicles 
using this entryway.  It was suggested that an angular approach on 

at this entryway would be helpful. 
 
Responses – The use of the access via the A24 slipway would be 

controlled by wig-wags.  The positioning of the wig-wags is based 
on approach speeds, wo there would be sufficient sightlines.  The 

wig-wags would be activated via transponder from the cabs of the 
fire tenders.  The addition of high friction road surfacing would aid 
traffic in slowing and stopping safely.   

 
Highway capacity 

 
Point raised – It was suggested that in relation to the Transport 
Assessment, an additional condition is required to ensure that there 

a Travel Plan for the development. 
 

Response – The suggested amendment should be considered by 
the Committee. 

 
Drainage 
 

Point raised – Clarification was sought on how the ecology pond -  
which is important for surface water drainage - would be secured 

(as shown within the blue-line boundary of the development). 
 
Response – Provision of an ecology pond is part of the wider 

discharge of conditions for the Highwood Hill develop and the matter 
has, therefore, addressed. 

 
Blue line boundary of the development / Ecological buffer 
zone 

 
Points raised – Clarification was sought that the land shown as 

within the blue-line boundary of the development area is not 
scheduled for development.  Details of the ecological exclusion zone 
were sought. 

 
Responses – The land edged in blue is an ecological buffer zone 

which has been established around the site to prevent the re-
colonisation of Great Crested Newts, as outlined in the Ecological 
Mitigation Strategy.  No trees would be permitted to be removed, 

particularly on the eastern boundary.  The County Council Ecologist 
has raised no objections. 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



Landscaping 

 
Point raised – It was suggested that condition 10 ‘Landscaping 
Scheme’ be amended to require a ten-year replanting scheme 

rather than the proposed five-years, so as to ensure long-term 
planting. 

 
Response – The suggested amendment should be considered by 
the Committee. 

 
Construction and Environmental Management Plan 

 
Point raised – It was suggested that condition 5 ‘Construction and 
Environmental Management Plan’ be amended to include limitations 

on external lighting and also to cover waste management matters 
including prevention of the burning of waste and storage and also 

include provision for domestic waste and recycling. 
 
Response – The suggested amendments should be considered by 

the Committee, but would be considered acceptable. 
 

Community facilities 
 
Point raised – Clarification was sought on the purpose for and 

likely use of the proposed community facilities at the development. 
 

Response – The site was designated for use as a fire station in the 
Land West of  Horsham Masterplan.  The provision of community 

facilities is intended for anticipated school visits, Duke of Edinburgh 
scheme, Fire Break events, etc.  Community provision is welcomed. 
 

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for double yellow lines on The 
Boulevard 

 
Points raised – Clarification was sought on the position of the 
proposed double yellow lines outside the stretch of The Boulevard 

that includes the frontage of Highwood Mill Extra Care housing 
facility and around the corner of the road.  Clarification was also 

sought on whether WSFR are content that the proposals are a safe 
arrangement to allow access for the fire tenders.  Concern was 
raised that the TRO process is very slow and that the TRO might not 

be implemented in time.  It was suggested that a condition be 
added to ensure that the TRO is in place prior to commencement of 

operations at the site.  A further suggestion was made, that an 
Informative be added to clarify to the applicant the process that 
they must follow. 

 
Responses – The plans showing the proposed double yellow lines is 

indicative and the exact position would be determined by the TRO.  
However, the intention is that lines will be on both sides of the road 
outside Highwood Mill Extra Care housing facility, although on the 

south side where there are parking laybys the double yellow lines 
would only be between the bays.  It was confirmed that there are 

existing double yellow lines on the north side of The Boulevard that 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



extend around corner, and it was explained that part of this road is 

already a rural clearway.  The TRO process lies outside the planning 
system, which states that conditions cannot be laid down where 
they are subject to another regulatory process.  Therefore, it would 

be unreasonable to include a requirement to ensure that a TRO is in 
place.  However, an additional Informative would be considered 

acceptable should the Committee wish to pursue this. 
 
Informative b) 

 
Point raised – An error in Informative b) was noted; reference to 

‘Arun District Council’ should read ‘Horsham District Council’. 
 
Response – Apologies were offered to the Committee regarding the 

error. 
 

Informative c) 
 
Point raised - An error within Informative c) was noted; reference 

to ‘condition 7’ should read ‘condition 10’. 
 

Response – Apologies were offered to the Committee regarding the 
error. 

 

5.8 Cllr Goldmith proposed the addition of a new condition regarding 
cladding materials, as follows:  

 
Cladding 

 
x. Prior to construction above slab level of the Live Fire 

Training Facility, a sample and/or details including the 

colour of the cladding material of that building, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the County 

Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried 
out in complete accordance with the approved details.  
 

In all other aspects of the proposed development it shall 
be constructed in accordance with the approved 

external materials proposed within the approved 
Planning Statement and Elevation Plans. 

 

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development 
 

The proposal was seconded by Cllr Atkins and was put to the Committee 
and approved unanimously. 
 

5.9 Cllr S Oakley proposed that an additional condition requiring a 
Travel Plan for the development.  The form of wording of the condition 

was delegated to the Head of Planning Services.  The proposal was 
seconded by Cllr Atkins and was put to the Committee and approved 
unanimously. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



5.10 Cllr S Oakley proposed an amendment to condition 5 – Construction 

and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), requiring further measures 
to be added after the existing point 9 of the condition, as follows:. 
 

Condition 5 – Construction and Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP) 

 
… 
 

10. Details of all proposed external lighting to be used 
during construction and measures used to limit the 

disturbance of any lighting required; lighting shall be 
used only for security and safety. 

11. Waste management including prohibition of burning 

at the scheme, and for the storage and disposal of 
waste providing maximum recycling opportunities 

and disposal and control of litter. 
12. Provision of temporary domestic waste and recycling 

bin collection points during construction. 

 
… 

 
The proposal was seconded by Cllr Atkins and was put to the Committee 
and approved unanimously. 

 
5.11 Cllr S Oakley proposed an amendment to condition 10 – Landscape 

Scheme, requiring a ten-year maintenance programme, with changes to 
the condition, as follows:. 

 
Condition 10 – Landscape Scheme 
 

… 
 

6. A written five-year ten-year maintenance scheme 
 
 The approved scheme shall be implemented in full, with all planting 

carried out and completed by the end of the first planting season 
(November – March) following the commencement of the 

development.  Any seeding which fails, plants which die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within the next 
five ten years shall be replaced in the next planting season in 

accordance with the approved details. 
 

… 
 

The proposal was seconded by Cllr Atkins and was put to the Committee 

and approved unanimously. 
 

5.12 Cllr Burrett proposed that an additional Informative be included, 
which shall encourage the developer to ensure that double yellow lines are 
in place before the building is put into use; this would be via the Traffic 

Regulation Order process.  The form of wording of the condition was 
delegated to the Head of Planning Services.  The proposal was seconded 

by Cllr Atkins and was put to the Committee and approved unanimously. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



 

5.13 The substantive recommendation including changes to Conditions 
and Informatives as set out in Appendix 1 and as amended by Agenda 
Update Sheet No. 2 and also as amended by the inclusion of new 

conditions and amendments to conditions, as approved by the Committee 
and noted in minutes 5.8 to 5.12 above, was proposed by Cllr Atkins.  The 

proposal was seconded by Cllr Barrett-Miles and approved unanimously. 
 
5.14 Resolved – that planning permission be granted subject to the 

Conditions and Informatives as set out in Appendix 1 of the report and 
amended as agreed by the Committee. 

 
6.    Date of Next Meeting  

 

6.1 The next scheduled meeting of Planning and Rights of Way 
Committee will be on Tuesday, 2 March 2021 at 10.30 a.m. 

 
6.2 In accordance with regulations in response to the current public 
health emergency. This meeting may be held virtually with members in 

remote attendance and with public access via webcasting. 
 

The meeting ended at 12.59 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Chairman 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

 

Planning Committee  

2 March 2021 

Minerals Planning Application (County Matter) 

Temporary permission for exploration and appraisal comprising the 

removal of drilling fluids and subsequent engineering works with an 
extended well test for hydrocarbons along with site security fencing 

and site restoration 

Lower Stumble Exploration Site, London Road, Balcombe RH17 6JH 

Application No: WSCC/045/20 

Report by Head of Planning Services 

Local Member: Mr Bill Acraman 

Electoral division/s: Worth Forest District: Mid Sussex 

 

Summary 

This report relates to an application to carry out a phased activity at an inactive 
hydrocarbon (oil/gas) site south of Balcombe, Mid Sussex to establish whether there 

are hydrocarbon reserves that could be viably extracted in the future.  It follows 
various permissions for oil/gas exploration operations at the site since 1986.  The site 
is located on the north-eastern side of the B2036 (London Road), 800 metres south of 

Balcombe, within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

Initially, the operator intends to remove previously used drilling fluids from the 

wellbore, after which oil may begin to flow.  If oil is present, the operator proposes 
installing a new impermeable well-pad membrane before carrying out an Extended 
Well Test (EWT) over a period of 12 months.  Should oil not be seen after removal of 

the drilling fluids, activities would cease, and the site would be restored. 

Should hydrocarbons be seen to be viable after review of the data produced from the 

EWT, the borehole would be temporarily suspended while a new planning application 
was prepared seeking commercial production.  If the reserves were considered to be 
unviable, the site would be restored. 

The report provides a generalised description of the site and a detailed account of the 
proposed development, and appraises it against the relevant policy framework, from 

national to local level, along with other material considerations. 

It should be noted that there are key differences between this and the previous 
application (WSCC/071/19) that was recommended for refusal and which 

subsequently withdrawn by the applicant.  The duration of the operations has been 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



shortened from three years and it is now proposed to install a new impermeable 

membrane.  The applicant has also submitted additional documents, including a 
Socio-Economic Report, information on recent permissions and planning appeals, and 

information on the potential for developing elsewhere.  

There have been no objections from statutory consultees, but Balcombe Parish Council 

has raised objections to the proposed development due to concerns about the need 
for the development; impact upon landscape, highways, amenity, public health, water 
environment, ecology, and safety; cost for the council; policy compliance; previous 

recommendation for refusal; and lack of community engagement.  

There have been 815 representations from third parties, 805 of those objecting, 4 no 

objections and 6 making comments about the development. 

Consideration of Key Issues  

The main material considerations in relation to this application are: 

 the need for the development;  

 whether it is ‘major development’ and, if it is, whether there are exceptional 
circumstances and it is in the public interest to permit it; 

 whether there are alternative sites; 

 the impact on highway capacity and road safety;  

 the impact on amenity and public health;  

 the impact on the water environment;  

 the impact on landscape and visual amenity; and 

 the impact on ecology.  

Need for the Development  

The NPPF gives ‘great weight’ to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to the 

economy and highlights that minerals can only be worked where they are found.  PPG: 
Minerals notes that energy supplies should come from a variety of sources and that oil 
and gas will continue to form part of the national energy supply.  The latest national 

energy policy indicates that the oil and gas industry has a critical role in maintaining 
the country’s energy security and economy.  On balance, therefore, it is concluded 

that there is a need for the development to contribute to national energy security and 
supply.  

Major Development? 

It is considered that the application is for ‘major development’ within the AONB.  

Therefore, an assessment has been undertaken in accordance with Policies M7(a) and 
M13(c) of the Joint Minerals Local Plan.  It is considered that there is a national need 
for the development and there would be a benefit to the local economy.  Although 

there are alternative sources of local and national supply, the operator is constrained 
by the extent of the PEDL area.  Furthermore, the cost of developing a new well 

outside the AONB, which may not be successful, weighs in favour of the continued use 
of the existing well site.  Although there are some adverse impacts, these could be 
satisfactorily mitigated through planning conditions.  Taking all these factors into 

account, the overall assessment is that there are exceptional circumstances and the 
development is in the public interest. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



Alternative Sites? 

The proposed development is located with the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB).  However, with much of the Petroleum Exploration and Development 
Licence (PEDL) area also within the AONB, it is considered the use of the site would 

represent an ‘acceptable environmental option’ when compared with developing a new 
site within the licenced area as the operator could utilise the existing borehole and 

associated data and infrastructure.  

Impact on Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

The proposed development would result in increased HGV movements on the B2036 
and other roads throughout the course of the development.  However, the increase in 

HGV traffic would not be significant in highways terms and would not result in an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or a severe impact on the road network.  

WSCC Highways raise no objection to the proposal, concluding that the increase in 
vehicle movements is not sufficient to materially impact on the operation of the 

highway network in safety or capacity terms, subject to the imposition of a condition 
requiring the submission and approval of a Traffic Management Plan.  

Impact on Amenity and Public Health 

The development has the potential to adversely affect residential amenity and health, 

primarily through increased noise and emissions to air.  In terms of noise, there is a 
potential for the flare and plant on site to result in noise disturbance.  However, it is 

considered that this could be adequately controlled by conditions requiring monitoring, 
and remediation if levels are exceeded.  The development has the potential to result 
in impacts on air quality through the use of a flare, and an increase in vehicles 

travelling to and from the site.  However, emissions from the flare would be controlled 
through the Environmental Permit for the site.  The potential impact of increased 

vehicle numbers is not considered to be significant as numbers are relatively low, and 
for a temporary period.  

Impact on the Water Environment  

One of the key issues raised in objections to the proposal is the potential impact on 
the water environment.  The risk to surface water would be minimised by carrying out 
activities on an impermeable membrane with a sealed drainage system.  With regard 

to groundwater, it must be assumed that the well is constructed and operated to the 
appropriate standards.  It is, therefore, concluded that the development does not pose 

a risk to the water environment, either at the surface or groundwater, and that the 
proposal accords with criteria (a)(iii) and (a)(v) of Policy M7a of the JMLP.  

Impact on Landscape 

There is the potential for impact on the character of the area, particularly by virtue of 

the flare being on site until the completion of the well test, and the disturbance 
created by an industrial-style operation being undertaken in a countryside location.  

However, on balance, it is not considered that these impacts are unacceptable and, 
therefore, the proposal accords with Policy M12 of the JMLP. 

Impact on Ecology 

The proposed development is adjacent to ancient woodland, and there are a number 
of Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) in the local area, though relatively 
distant from the site, each being more than 2,000 metres away.  A key concern 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



relates to the potential impact on bats.  However, WSCC’s Ecology Officers have 

raised no objection, subject to conditions to control lighting on the site, and bat 
monitoring.  It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of its 

potential impact on ecology.  

Overall Conclusion 

This application seeks an extended well test for hydrocarbon development for up to 12 

months, in addition to other short-term activities, at an existing site within the High 
Weald AONB.   

The NPPF gives ‘great weight’ to the benefits of mineral extraction and national 
guidance notes that energy supplies should come from a variety of sources, including 

oil and gas.  On balance, and taking account of the latest national energy policy, it is 
concluded that there is a need for the development to contribute to national energy 

security and supply. 

With regard to the acceptability of the development in this sensitive location, it is 
considered that the application is for ‘major development’.  Therefore, following an 

assessment in accordance with Policies M7 and M13 of the JMLP, it has been 
concluded that there are exceptional circumstances and it is in the public interest for 
the application to be permitted.   

As above, it considered that there is a national need for the development and, 

furthermore, there would be a benefit to the local economy.  Although there are 
alternative sources of local and national supply, the operator is constrained by the 

extent of the PEDL area and it is considered the use of the site would represent an 
‘acceptable environmental option’ when compared with developing a new site within 
the licenced area, which would be more expensive and with no guarantee of success.  

The extended well test and associated activities have the potential to result in adverse 
impacts on the highway, local communities, landscape character and the local 
environment, issues that have been raised in the large number of objections to the 

application.  Balcombe Parish Council has objected to the application, but no other 
statutory consultees have objected, subject to the imposition of conditions and having 

regard to relevant policy and guidance.   

It is concluded that the number of vehicles required to carry out the development is 
not significant enough to raise concerns regarding highway capacity or road safety.  
Emissions from the development would be controlled through the planning regime as 

well as through the Environmental Permitting and health and safety regimes which 
would ensure that water quality would not be compromised and that emissions to air 

would be acceptable.   

The High Weald AONB has the highest level of protection, with the NPPF directing 
authorities to give ‘great weight’ to conserving its landscape and scenic beauty, in 

addition to giving ‘great weight’ to the extraction of minerals.  On balance, it is 
considered that the impact of the proposed development on the AONB, and the 
character of the area in general, would not be unacceptable.   

Overall, although the proposed development would have some adverse impacts, it is 

considered that they could be satisfactorily mitigated through the imposition of 
appropriate planning conditions.   

On balance, in light of the above assessment and taking account of the changes to the 

proposed development (in particular the shorter duration of the operations proposed 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



compared with the previous application), the additional information submitted by the 

applicant, and changes to national energy policy, the revised application is considered 
to accord with the policies in the development plan (in particular, Policies M7 and M13 

of the JMLP) and, therefore, it is acceptable. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the conditions and 
informatives set out at Appendix 1. 

1. Introduction 

1.1 This report relates to an application to carry out a phased activity at an inactive 
hydrocarbon (oil/gas) site south of Balcombe, Mid Sussex to establish whether 

there are hydrocarbon reserves that could be viably extracted in the future.  It 
follows various permissions for oil/gas exploration operations at the site since 
1986.   

1.2 Initially, the operator intends to remove previously used drilling fluids from the 
well, after which oil may begin to flow.  If oil is present, the operator would 

install a new impermeable well-pad membrane before carrying out an Extended 
Well Test (EWT) over a period of 12 months.  Should oil not be found after 

removal of the drilling fluids, activities would cease, and the site would be 
restored.   

1.3 Should hydrocarbons be seen to be viable after review of the data produced 

from the EWT, the borehole would be temporarily suspended while a new 
planning application was prepared seeking commercial production.  If the 

reserves were considered to be unviable, the site would be restored. 

2. Site and Description  

2.1 The application site is located on the north-eastern side of the B2036 (London 
Road), 800m south of Balcombe (see Appendix 2: Site Location Plan).  It is 

on the Balcombe Estate which also owns land to the east and west of the site.  
It is located in an area of woodland comprising a conifer plantation, native and 

non-native planting, as well as Lower Meadham Wood and Lower Stumble 
Wood, both of which are Ancient Woodlands. 

2.2 The site extends to some 0.73 hectares: 0.58 hectares for the above ground 

works (surface pad and access road linking to London Road), with the lateral 
borehole comprising the remaining 0.15 hectares (see Appendix 3: Existing 

Site Plan). 

2.3 The pad is a roughly rectangular area of hardstanding with the borehole in its 
approximate centre and is enclosed with a 2m security fence.   

2.4 A site access road of 150 metres in length extends between the north-eastern 
corner of the pad and the eastern side of the B2036.  The access road is sealed, 

with agricultural-style gates at the highway access.  

2.5 The lateral extension of the well (i.e. a horizontal borehole) is 820 metres in 

depth, and extends 520 metres from the pad in a south-westerly direction.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



2.6 The pad is enclosed on three sides by woodland, and on the fourth, to the 

south-east, by the access road, beyond which is woodland.  The London-
Brighton railway line lies 45 metres east of the site on an elevated bank.  

2.7 The site is 350 metres south-east of Kemps Farm, the nearest residential 
property, and 800 metres from the southern edge of Balcombe village.  

2.8 The site is located within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB).   

2.9 It is not within an area subject to ecological, heritage or other designations, and 

is not in an area identified as being at increased risk of flooding.  It is not within 
a groundwater Source Protection Zone (SPZ).  The site is one kilometre from 

the Ardingly Reservoir, and there are small streams in the locality of the site, 
including 15 metres east of the access road.  

2.10 The nearest Public Right of Way (footpath number 13Ba) is 300 metres north of 

the site, running from London Road east under the railway corridor.  

3. Relevant Planning History 

3.1 The site was first used for exploratory drilling in 1986–1987 under a planning 

permission (ref. BA/10/86) which allowed the construction of a hardstanding in 
association with exploratory drilling.  The well was drilled, and the pad was 
subsequently retained for use by the Balcombe Estate for forestry product 

storage (ref. BA/38/87).  

3.2 A temporary, three-year permission (ref. WSCC/027/10/BA) was subsequently 

granted by West Sussex County Council in 2010, to “upgrade existing stoned 
platform and drill and exploratory borehole for gas and oil exploration”.   

3.3 The permission allowed flow testing and monitoring, and was subject to 21 

conditions, with condition no. 2 of the permission stating:  

“This permission shall be for a limited period only expiring 3 years 

from the date of commencement of site construction, by which date 
the operations hereby permitted shall have ceased, all buildings, 

plant and machinery, including foundations, hard standings shall be 
removed from the site, and the site shall be restored in accordance 
with the approved restoration scheme.” 

3.4 The County Council was advised that construction works would commence on 
28 September 2010, at which time the applicant carried out preparatory site 

works sufficient to implement the permission.  No further operations took place 
at the site under this permission until July 2013 when drilling commenced, after 
initial site preparations and mobilisation of equipment.  Drilling began at the 

site on 29 July 2013 and was completed by 24 September 2013, with 
equipment removed by 28 September 2013.  

3.5 Two applications were submitted in July 2013 seeking additional time to carry 
out the drilling and testing programme (ref. WSCC/061/13/BA) and to vary the 
approved flare to be used under the 2010 permission (ref. WSCC/063/13/BA).  

These applications were withdrawn on 2 September 2013.   

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



3.6 A temporary, six month planning permission (ref. WSCC/005/14/BA) was 

granted by the Planning Committee on 2 May 2014, allowing exploration and 
appraisal at the site, comprising the flow testing and monitoring of the existing 

hydrocarbon lateral borehole, along with site security fencing, the provision of 
an enclosed testing flare, and site restoration.  The permission was not 

implemented by the operator and lapsed on the 2 May 2017.   

3.7 A temporary planning permission (ref. WSCC/040/17/BA) was approved on 10 
January 2018 for a seven-day well test.  This permission allowed flow testing, 

monitoring of the borehole, security fencing, an enclosed flare and site 
restoration.  The Council was informed that the test had commenced on 24 

September 2018 and was completed on 2 October 2018, with the site then 
being de-mobilised.  

3.8 The most recent planning application (WSCC/071/19), which was withdrawn, 

sought a two-stage activity of pumping the previously used drilling fluid and 
then a 3-year EWT.  The application was recommended for refusal for the 

following reason: 

‘The proposed development would represent major development in the High 
Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, for which there are no 

exceptional circumstances, and which is not in the public interest.  There 
are alternative sources of hydrocarbon supply, both indigenous and 

imported, to meet the national need, there would be minimal benefit to the 
local economy from the development, and there is scope for meeting the 
need in some other way, outside of nationally designated landscapes.  It 

would therefore be contrary to Policies M7a and M13 of the West Sussex 
Joint Local Minerals Plan (2018) and paragraphs 170 and 172 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (2019).’ 

3.9 The key differences between the current application and planning application 
WSCC/071/19 are identified in paragraph 4.25. 

4. The Proposal  

4.1 The applicant is seeking temporary planning permission to carry out a phased 
operation, namely pumping out old drilling fluids, installing a new well-pad 

membrane and undertaking a 12-month Extended Well Test.  

4.2 The overall purpose of these works is to establish whether the well has 

sufficient hydrocarbons, with sufficient flow, to make production economically 
viable.  If appraisal indicates production from the well would be viable, the 
applicant has indicated that a new planning application would be submitted for 

future production.  If oil does not flow from the borehole, works on site would 
cease and the well would be shut down.  

4.3 The applicant has stated that the proposal does not involve hydraulic fracturing.  
In addition, if the operator wished to ‘frack’ the site in the future (although this 
is unlikely given the geology), a separate planning permission would need to be 

sought. 

4.4 In terms of the physical equipment on site, ancillary site infrastructure to be 

installed during both stages includes modular buildings, a bunded area around 
the well head, and the retention of a fence around the pad’s perimeter.  
Modular buildings would be located around the periphery of the drill pad, 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



containing staff accommodation and facilities, offices, and storage.  There 

would be a parking area along the north-eastern boundary and skips for waste 
within the site (see Appendix 4: Proposed Site Plan).  

4.5 A crane of up to 40m in height would be used for up to ten days, at the 
beginning and end of Stages 1 and 2 to mobilise/demobilise equipment.  

4.6 An enclosed flare of 13.8 metres in height would be installed in the south-
eastern corner of the site to burn off any natural gas found in the well.  The 
flare would be on site for the duration of the extended well test.  

4.7 Otherwise the stages of the operations and equipment involved are as set out 
below.  

Removal of fluids 

4.8 This activity would require the use of a linear rod pump, or equivalent pump 
jack/nodding donkey, various tanks for fluid storage, and associated pipe work 

and equipment.  A welfare unit and security unit would also be located on the 
site.  Acoustic barriers of 2m in height would be installed around the 

operational area, if required.  

4.9 Once the site has been set up, the pumping of the well would commence, with 
the fluids produced being collected in the on-site storage tanks.  Pumping would 

continue until the drilling fluids are reduced and oil flows from the borehole (if it 
does).  At this point, the well would be suspended before Stage 2 begins.   

4.10 The operator anticipates that this stage would take approximately seven days, 
with a worst-case scenario being four weeks.  

4.11 If oil does not flow from the borehole, works on site would cease, the well 

would be sealed, and the site would be restored (see below).  

Pad membrane works  

4.12 The applicant states that to meet with current onshore oil and gas standards, a 
site wide impermeable membrane would be installed.  The application explains 
that “the purpose of the membrane is to isolate surface activity from the risk of 

spills and contamination from the extended well test.”  

4.13 The objective of the impermeable sub-base is to provide full containment of the 

wellsite.  In essence, in the unlikely event of a significant spillage from site, it 
would prevent contaminated surface water and/or pollutants from entering the 
ground. 

Extended Well Test 

4.14 If oil flows, the operation would move on to the EWT.  The existing equipment, 

including the nodding donkey/linear pump, would remain on site, and additional 
tanks and equipment would be brought on site, including the enclosed flare.  It 

is the hope of the applicant that the hydrocarbon would flow naturally, but 
should flow not be sustained, contingency plans have been included in the EWT 
and include the use of a nitrogen lift, an acid wash, and/or an inflatable bridge 

plug.   

Page 22

Agenda Item 4



4.15 If the testing determines that hydrocarbons are commercially viable, the 

equipment would be cleared from the site and the well secured (i.e. the 
condition the site is currently in) while a new planning application is prepared 

for production.  

4.16 If no reserves are found, the well would be sealed and the site restored (see 

below). 

Well Sealing and Restoration 

4.17 Should it be determined that the hydrocarbons found are not commercially 

viable, the well would be sealed and secured, a process also known as ‘plugging 
and abandonment’.  This would typically involve the sealing of the borehole 

with cement, providing a barrier, thereby preventing any unintended release of 
fluids.  Sub-surface wastes would be removed in accordance with an 
Environmental Permit relating to the management of mining waste.  

4.18 The works would be undertaken in accordance with procedures agreed with the 
relevant regulatory bodies: the Health and Safety Executive (HSE); the 

Environment Agency; and the Oil and Gas Authority (OGA).  

4.19 Once the well has been sealed, the site would be cleared of plant and 
equipment, tanks, and waste, and restored to its previous use as a 

hardstanding for forestry use.  It is anticipated these works would take four 
days. 

4.20 Restoration would then take place and would involve planting 50% of the area 
covered by the current concrete pad with deciduous woodland.   

Vehicle Movements 

4.21 The submission summarises the approximate timescales and HGV movements 
associated with each stage of the proposal.  This indicates that the most 

intensive period of HGV movements would be during the mobilisation/de-
mobilisation activities.  During these periods, there would be up to 16 two-way 
movements each day (approximately 8 HGVs travelling to/from the site).   

Hours of Operation 

4.22 The applicant has sought different working hours, dependent upon the stage of 

operations.  During site preparation (set-up), de-mobilising, installation of the 
membrane and restoration works, the applicant has stated that hours of 
operation would be between 07:00 and 19:00 hours on Monday to Friday, and 

08:00 and 13:00 hours on Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays, Public or 
Bank Holidays.   

4.23 The pumping of the drilling fluids, the EWT operation (including flaring 
operations) and the plugging and abandonment work would be required to be 

undertaken 24 hours each day.  However, HGV movements for all operations at 
the site (with the exception of undertaking urgent works in emergency 
situations) would be limited to between 07:30 and 18:30 hours on Monday to 

Friday, and 08:00 and 13:00 hours on Saturdays, with no movement on 
Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.   

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4



Environmental Permit 

4.24 The currently proposed testing programme would be subject to an 
Environmental Permit granted by the Environment Agency in relation to the 

management of mining waste (including flare emissions) and naturally 
occurring radioactive substances.  

Difference/Changes 

4.25 There are differences between this and the previous application (WSCC/071/19) 
that was recommended for refusal and which was subsequently withdrawn by 

the applicant.  Most significantly, the duration of the operations has been 
shortened to a twelve-month testing period, compared with the three-year 

extended well test previously proposed, and it is now proposed to install a new 
impermeable membrane to accord with current guidelines.  The applicant has 
also submitted additional documents, including a Socio-Economic Report 

highlighting the potential benefits of the development to the local economy.  
They have also highlighted recent permissions of similar sites and planning 

appeals and researched the potential for developing elsewhere, demonstrating 
why this site is more favourable than others.  Section 9 of this report considers 
these alterations in further detail.  

5 Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) 

5.1 The need for EIA was considered in relation to this application in accordance 
with the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 

Regulations 2017 (‘the EIA Regulations’).  

5.2 The development does not fall within Schedule 1 of the EIA Regulations which 
sets out development for which EIA is always required.  

5.3 It does, however, fall within Schedule 2, where EIA is required if the local 
authority considers the development is likely to have significant effects on the 

environment.  It falls within Schedule 2 because the site is within a defined 
‘sensitive area’, namely an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, and the 

development sought is a ‘surface industrial installation for the extraction of 
petroleum and natural gas’ which exceeds the stated threshold of more than 
0.5 hectares in area (Schedule 2, Part 2(e)).   

5.4 Consideration must be therefore given as to whether the development has the 
potential to result in ‘significant environmental effects’ and therefore requires 

EIA.  

5.5 The Annex to Planning Policy Guidance: Environmental Impact Assessment (15 
March 2019) sets out indicative thresholds when considering whether EIA is 

necessary.  For Part 2(e) the indicative thresholds refer to a development site 
of 10 hectares or more, or where production is expected to be more than 

100,000 tonnes of petroleum per year.  The present proposal would not fall 
within either of these criteria.  

5.6 The key issues to consider are noted in the Annex as the scale of development, 

emissions to air, discharges to water, risk of accidents and arrangements for 
transporting the fuel.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 4



5.7 The scale of the present development and emissions associated with it are not 

considered to be significant, particularly as the use would be temporary.  The 
risk of accidents is not considered to be significant, and significant amounts of 

fuel would not require transportation.  No potentially significant impacts, within 
the meaning of the EIA Regulations, have therefore been identified when 

considering the key issues.  

5.8 Taking into account the EIA Regulations 2017, as expanded upon by the above 
considerations, it was considered in an EIA Screening Opinion dated 24 July 

2020 that the proposals would not have the potential for significant effects on 
the environment within the meaning of the EIA Regulations.  Therefore, EIA 

was not considered necessary. 

6. Policy and Legal Context 

 Statutory Development Plan 

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 

applications are determined in accordance with the statutory ‘development plan’ 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (as confirmed in paragraph 2 

of the National Planning Policy Framework (‘the NPPF’)). 

6.2 For the purposes of the application, the statutory development plan comprises 
the West Sussex Joint Minerals Local Plan (2018), the Mid Sussex District Plan 

(2014-2031), and Balcombe Parish Neighbourhood Plan (2016–2031). 

6.3 The key policies in the development plan that are material to the determination 

of the application are summarised below.  In addition, reference is made to 
relevant national planning policy guidance, emerging planning policies and 
other policies that guide the decision-making process and which are material to 

the determination of the application.  

West Sussex Joint Minerals Local Plan (JMLP) (2018) 

6.4 The JMLP was adopted in July 2018 and covers the period up to 2033.  It is the 
most up-to-date statement of the County Council’s land-use planning policy for 

minerals.  It accords with the approach taken in the NPPF and should be given 
significant weight when considering this application. 

6.5 Policy M7a and M13 of the JMLP are of greatest relevance to the present 

application, relating as they do to ‘hydrocarbon development not involving 
hydraulic fracturing’ and development in the High Weald Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty respectively.   

6.6 Clause (a) of Policy M7a, relating to the exploration/appraisal phases of 
hydrocarbon development, not involving hydraulic fracturing, states: 

“Exploration and Appraisal 

(a) Proposals for exploration and appraisal for oil and gas, not involving 

hydraulic fracturing, including extensions to existing sites will be 
permitted provided that:  

(i) With regard to development proposals deemed to be major, 

the site is located outside the South Downs National Park, High 
Weald AONB or Chichester Harbour AONB unless it has been 

demonstrated that there are exceptional circumstances and 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



that it is in the public interest, and in accordance with Policy 

M13; 

(ii) the site selected represents an acceptable environmental 

option in comparison to other deliverable alternative sites from 
which the target reservoir can be accessed, taking into account 

impacts from on-site activities and off-site activities including 
HGV movements; 

(iii) any unacceptable impacts including (but not limited to) noise, 

dust, visual intrusion, transport, and lighting, on both the 
natural, historic and built environment and local community, 

including air quality and the water environment, can be 
minimised, and/or mitigated, to an acceptable level; 

(iv) restoration and aftercare of the site to a high quality standard 

would take place in accordance with Policy M24 whether or not 
oil or gas is found; 

(v) no unacceptable impacts would arise from the on-site storage 
or treatment of hazardous substances and/or contaminated 
fluids above or below ground.” 

6.7 Policy M12 relates to character, stating:  

“Proposals for mineral development will be permitted provided that: 

(a) they would not have an unacceptable impact on the character, 
distinctiveness, sense of place of the different areas of the County, the 
special qualities of the South Downs National Park, and the setting and 

character of the Chichester Harbour and High Weald Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and the setting of protected landscapes; 

(b) they would not have an unacceptable impact on the separate identity 
of settlements and distinctive character of towns and villages 
(including specific areas or neighbourhoods) and development would 

not lead to their actual or perceived coalescence; and 

(c) they reflect and, where possible, reinforce the distinctive attributes of 

the main character areas (including the retention of important features 
or characteristics). 

6.8 Policy M13 relates to protected landscape, of which clause (a) states: 

“(a) Proposals for mineral development within protected landscapes (the 
High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty) will not be permitted 

unless… 

i. the site is allocated for that purpose in the adopted plan; or 

ii. the proposal is for a small-scale development to meet local needs 
that can be accommodated without undermining the objectives of 
the designation; or 

iii. The proposal is for major development that accords with part (c) 
of this Policy.” 

6.9 Part (c) of policy M13 reads: 

“Proposals for major mineral development within protected landscapes will 
not be permitted unless there are exceptional circumstances and where it is 

in the public interest as informed by an assessment of: 

Page 26

Agenda Item 4



i. the need for the development, including in terms of any national 

considerations, and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, 
upon the local economy; 

ii. the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the 
designated area, or meeting the need for the mineral in some 

other way; and 

iii. any potential detrimental impact on the environment, landscape, 
and recreational opportunities, and the extent to which identified 

impacts can be satisfactorily mitigated.” 

6.10 The other ‘development management’ policies of relevance to the proposal are 

as follows:  

 Policy M15: Air and Soil – supports development which would not have 
unacceptable impacts on the intrinsic quality of air and soil or their 

management;  

 Policy M16: Water Resources – supports development which would not 

cause unacceptable risk to water quality or quantity;  

 Policy M17: Biodiversity and Geodiversity – supports development which 
avoids/mitigates/remedies significant harm to wildlife species and habitats;  

 Policy M18: Public Health and Amenity – supports development which would 
not result in an unacceptable impact on public health and amenity through 

lighting, noise, dust, odours, vibration, and other emissions and that routes 
and amenity of public rights of way are safeguarded;  

 Policy M19: Flood Risk Management – supports development which would 

not result in increased flood risk on site or elsewhere; 

 Policy M20: Transport – supports development with adequate transport 

links; is capable of using the Lorry Route Network rather than local roads; 
does not have an unacceptable impact on highway capacity; provides safe 
access to the highway; provides vehicle turning on site; and minimises 

vehicle movements; 

 Policy M22: Cumulative Impact – supports development provided an 

unreasonable level of disturbance does not result from cumulative impact;  

 Policy M24: Restoration and Aftercare – supports development with 
restoration schemes which ensure that land is restored at its earliest 

opportunity to a high quality; 

 Policy M25: Community Engagement - supports site liaison groups, where 

necessary, to address issues arising from site operations. 

Mid Sussex District Plan (2014) 

6.11 The Mid Sussex District Plan (2014) was adopted in March 2018 and covers the 
period up to 2031.  Policies DP12 and DP16 are of particular relevance, seeking 
to protect the countryside and the AONB. 

6.12 Policy DP12: 'Protection and enhancement of countryside states: 

“The countryside will be protected in recognition of its intrinsic character 

and beauty. Development will be permitted in the countryside, defined as 
the area outside of built-up area boundaries on the Policies Map, 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



provided it maintains or where possible enhances the quality of the rural 

and landscape character of the District, and: 

 it is necessary for the purposes of agriculture; or 

 it is supported by a specific policy reference either elsewhere in the 
Plan, a Development Plan Document or relevant Neighbourhood Plan. 

Agricultural land of Grade 3a and above will be protected from non-
agricultural development proposals. Where significant development of 
agricultural land is demonstrated to be necessary, detailed field surveys 

should be undertaken and proposals should seek to use areas of poorer 
quality land in preference to that of higher quality. 

The Mid Sussex Landscape Character Assessment, the West Sussex 
County Council Strategy for the West Sussex Landscape, the Capacity of 
Mid Sussex District to Accommodate Development Study and other 

available landscape evidence (including that gathered to support 
Neighbourhood Plans) will be used to assess the impact of development 

proposals on the quality of rural and landscape character 

Built-up area boundaries are subject to review by Neighbourhood Plans 
or through a Site Allocations Development Plan Document, produced by 

the District Council. 

Economically viable mineral reserves within the district will be 

safeguarded” 

6.13 Policy DP16: High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty seeks to protect 
valued landscapes.  It states that: 

“Development within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), as shown on the Policies Maps, will only be permitted where it 

conserves or enhances natural beauty and has regard to the High Weald 
AONB Management Plan, in particular; 

 the identified landscape features or components of natural beauty 

and to their setting; 

 the traditional interaction of people with nature, and appropriate land 

management; 

 character and local distinctiveness, settlement pattern, sense of place 
and setting of the AONB; and 

 the conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage. 

Small scale proposals which support the economy and social well-being 

of the AONB that are compatible with the conservation and enhancement 
of natural beauty will be supported. 

Development on land that contributes to the setting of the AONB will only 
be permitted where it does not detract from the visual qualities and 
essential characteristics of the AONB, and in particular should not 

adversely affect the views into and out of the AONB by virtue of its 
location or design” 

6.14 The other policies of relevance to the proposal are as follows:  

 Policy DP1: Sustainable Development in Mid Sussex 

 Policy DP21: Transport 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4



 Policy DP29: Noise, Air and Light pollution 

 Policy DP37: Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows 

 Policy DP38: Biodiversity 

 Policy DP39: Sustainable Design and Construction 

 Policy DP41: Flood Risk and Drainage 

 Policy DP42: Water Infrastructure and the Water Environment 

Balcombe Parish Neighbourhood Plan 

6.15 The Balcombe Parish Neighbourhood Plan was ‘made’ in September 2016 and 

forms part of the ‘Development Plan’.  Neighbourhood Plans cannot consider 
issues related to minerals development, including oil and gas.  

6.16 Policy 3: Design is of greatest relevance, seeking to avoid significant 
detrimental effect on the landscape and natural beauty of the High Weald 
AONB.  

 National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 

6.17 The NPPF sets out the government’s planning policies for England and outlines 

how these are expected to be applied.  The NPPF does not form part of the 
development plan but is a material consideration in determining planning 
applications.  One of its stated intentions is to guide decision-makers as to what 

matters are material to the decision-making process.  At the heart of the NPPF 
is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  

6.18 The paragraphs in the NPPF of greatest relevance to the present proposal are: 

 Paragraph 11 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development, and 
approving development that accords with the development plan;  

 Paragraph 38 – Positive decision making;  

 Paragraph 47 – Determining applications in accordance with the 

development plan;  

 Paragraph 54 – 56 – Use of planning conditions;  

 Paragraph 108 – Impacts on transport networks and securing safe and 

suitable access; 

 Paragraph 127 – Development should be of high quality and sympathetic to 

the local character and history; 

 Paragraph 163 – Development should not increase flood risk elsewhere;  

 Paragraph 170 – Development to contribute to and enhance the natural and 

local environment including the countryside, providing net gains for 
biodiversity, and preventing unacceptable pollution;  

 Paragraph 172 – Great weight given to conserving and enhancing Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty; 

 Paragraph 175 – Development should normally be refused if it cannot avoid, 
mitigate or compensate for significant harm to biodiversity, or result in the 
loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats;  

Page 29

Agenda Item 4



 Paragraph 180 – Ensuring new development appropriate for location taking 

into account impact of pollution on health and the environment; 

 Paragraph 203 – Supply of minerals; highlights that minerals can only be 

worked where they are found, and the importance of making best use of 
them to secure their long-term conservation;  

 Paragraph 205 - Giving great weight to the benefits of mineral extraction  
and ensuring that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural 
and historic environment, human health, or aviation safety, and taking into 

account cumulative impacts; and 

 Paragraph 209 – Distinguish and plan positively for exploration, appraisal 

and production of hydrocarbons (oil/gas)(further details in Section 9 below).  

6.19 With regard to the final bullet relating to paragraph 209, this was updated in 
July 2018 with the addition of the following wording  

“209. Minerals Planning Authorities should:  

a) Recognise the benefits of on-shore oil and gas development, including 

unconventional hydrocarbons, for the security of energy supplies and 
supporting the transition to a low carbon economy; and put in place 
policies to facilitate their exploration and extraction.”  

6.20 However, the insertion of the paragraph was challenged through Judicial Review 
on various grounds, with the Court determining that new evidence regarding 

the climate change impacts of shale gas extraction had not been properly 
considered; therefore consultation on the revision was not properly undertaken. 
For this reason, from February 2019 the paragraph was removed from the 

NPPF, a position that was confirmed in a Written Ministerial Statement issued 
on 23 May 2019. 

Planning Policy Guidance  

6.21 Planning Practice Guides (PPGs) were first published in March 2014 to 
accompany the NPPF.  As with the NPPF, these are a material consideration in 

considering planning applications. 

PPG: Minerals 

6.22 PPG: Minerals (March 2014) sets out the Government’s approach to planning 
for mineral extraction in both plan-making and the planning application 
process.  

6.23 Paragraph 12 sets out the relationship between planning and other regulatory 
regimes noting that “the planning system controls development and the use of 

land in the public interest” including ensuring development is appropriate for its 
location and an acceptable use of land.   

6.24 It notes that “the focus of the planning system should be on whether the 
development itself is an acceptable use of the land and the impacts of those 
uses, rather than any control processes, health and safety issues or emissions 

themselves where these are subject to approval under regimes. Mineral 
planning authorities should assume that these non-planning regimes will 

operate effectively.”  

Page 30

Agenda Item 4



6.25 Paragraph 13 sets out the environmental issues minerals planning authorities 

should address including noise, air quality, lighting, visual impact, traffic, risk of 
contamination to land, geological structure, flood risk, impacts on protected 

landscapes, surface and in some cases ground water issues, and water 
abstraction.  

6.26 Paragraph 14 sets out issues which are for other regulatory regimes to address. 
For hydrocarbon extraction, paragraphs 110 to 112 of the PPG sets out the key 
regulators in addition to the Mineral Planning Authority, namely: 

 Oil and Gas Authority (formerly Department of Energy and Climate Change 
(DECC)): issues petroleum licences, gives consent to drill, responsibility for 

assessing risk of and monitoring seismic activity, grant consent for flaring or 
venting;  

 Environment Agency:  protect water resources (including groundwater 

aquifers), ensure appropriate treatment of mining waste, emissions to air, 
and suitable treatment/management of naturally occurring radioactive 

materials (NORMs). Assess chemical content of fluids used in operations.  

 Health and Safety Executive: regulates safety aspects of all phases of 
extraction, particularly ensuring the appropriate design and construction of a 

well casing for any borehole.  

6.27 Paragraph 17 notes that the cumulative impact of mineral development can be 

a material consideration in determining planning applications.  

6.28 Paragraphs 91 to 128 relate specifically to hydrocarbon extraction.  

6.29 Paragraph 93 notes that planning permission is required for each phase of 

hydrocarbon extraction, while paragraph 94 notes that applications can cover 
more than one phase and paragraph 118 notes that both vertical and horizontal 

drilling can be included in one application.  

6.30 Paragraph 100 explains that the appraisal phase 

 “…can take several forms including additional seismic work, longer-term 

flow tests, or the drilling of further wells. This may involve additional 
drilling at another site away from the exploration site or additional wells 

at the original exploration site…Much will depend on the size and 
complexity of the hydrocarbon reservoir involved. 

6.31 Paragraph 124 states that Mineral Planning Authorities should take account of 

Government energy policy ‘which makes it clear that energy supplies should 
come from a variety of sources’ including onshore oil and gas. It also refers 

(and electronically links) to the Annual Energy Statement 2013 which notes, 
among other things, that the UK needs to make the transition to low carbon in 

order to meet legally-binding carbon emission reduction targets (paragraph 
1.2) and that levels of production from the UK continental shelf are declining so 
the UK will become increasingly reliant on imported energy (paragraph 1.3). 

The three stated priorities in delivering the UK’s energy policies in the near 
term are:  

 “helping households and businesses take control of their energy bills 
and keep their costs down;  

 unlocking investment in the UK’s energy infrastructure that will support 

economic growth; and  

Page 31

Agenda Item 4



 playing a leading role in efforts to secure international action to 

reduce greenhouse gas emissions and tackle climate change.” 
(paragraph 1.6).  

6.32 Paragraph 3.69 states: 

“With oil and gas remaining key elements of the energy system for 

years to come (especially for transport and heating), the Government is 
committed to maximising indigenous resources, onshore and offshore, 
where it is cost-effective and in line with safety and environmental 

regulations to help ensure security of supply.” 

Other PPGs 

6.33 PPG: Air Quality notes that when deciding whether air quality is relevant to a 
planning application, considerations could include whether the development 
would (in summary): significantly affect traffic (through congestion, volumes, 

speed, or traffic composition on local roads); introducing new point sources of 
air pollution; give rise to potentially unacceptable impact (such as dust) during 

construction; or affect biodiversity (paragraph 5). 

6.34 PPG: Noise notes that noise can override other planning concerns (paragraph 
2), and that the acoustic environment should be taken account of in making 

decisions, including consideration of (in summary) whether a significant 
adverse effect is likely to occur; whether an adverse effect is likely to occur; 

and whether a good standard of amenity can be achieved (paragraph 3).  

6.35 PPG: Climate Change notes that addressing climate change is one of the core 
land use planning principles the NPPF expects to underpin decision taking.  

Notes the Climate Change Act 2008 which requires the Government to assess 
regularly the risks to the UK of the current and predicted impact of climate 

change, to set out its climate change adaptation objectives and to set out its 
proposals and policies for meeting these objectives. 

6.36 PPG: Natural Environment examines key issues in implementing policies to 

protect and enhance natural environment, including landscape.  Local planning 
authorities should have regard to designated areas and have regard to 

management plans for AONBs (paragraph 39). Paragraph 40 notes:  

 “Management plans for National Parks, the Broads and Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty do not form part of the statutory development 

plan, but they help to set out the strategic context for development. They 
provide evidence of the value and special qualities of these areas, provide a 

basis for cross-organisational work to support the purposes of their 
designation and show how management activities contribute to their 

protection, enhancement and enjoyment. They may contain information 
which is relevant when preparing plan policies, or which is a material 
consideration when assessing planning applications” 

High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty: Management Plan 
2019 - 2024 

6.37 The High Weald AONB Management Plan (2019 – 2024) is a statutory document 
which formulates the relevant local authorities’ policy for the management of 
the AONB so is a material consideration for this proposal.  In the High Weald, 

Page 32

Agenda Item 4



as it covers numerous administrative boundaries, the management plan is 

delivered through a partnership of 15 local authorities.   

6.38 The Management Plan states that they are strategies: 

“for looking after these beautiful places in the interests of both people and 
nature.  They are formulated to coordinate policy, investment and action in 

these nationally-important landscapes in order to achieve the legal purpose 
of ‘conserving and enhancing natural beauty’ for the benefit of current and 
future generations.” 

7. Consultations 

7.1 The following summarises the responses of statutory consultees to the 
application.   

7.2 Mid Sussex District Council (Planning & Environmental Health 
comments):  Asks that in determining the application WSCC is satisfied with 
the effects on the AONB; and if permission is granted, that conditions should 

secure a Construction Management Plan that could include hours of work and 
numbers of HGVs/routing/deliveries to avoid school drop-off and pick-up times.  

It also requests conditions mitigating noise (as suggested in the submitted 
Noise Management Plan) are included.  If staff reside on the site, it states that 
appropriate accommodation should be provided.  It urges WSCC to ensure 

residents are protected from noise impacts, air quality, odour and groundwater 
and to apply and enforce the conditions of the application. 

7.3 Balcombe Parish Council: Objects on various grounds including; the need for 
the development, impact upon landscape, highways, amenity and public health 
and the water environment; cost for the council; that it does not comply with 

West Sussex Joint Minerals Local Plan; that the previous application was 
recommended for refusal; ecology concerns; safety concerns; and a lack of 

community engagement. 

7.4 Environment Agency: No objection.  Notes that there is an Environmental 

Permitting Process. 

7.5 Natural England: No objection. 

7.6 WSCC Drainage: No comments to make.  

7.7 WSCC Ecology:  No objection subject to conditions for a lighting strategy and 
bat monitoring. 

7.8 WSCC Highways: No objection subject to condition requiring the submission 
of a Traffic Management Plan.  Given the temporary nature of the movement 
and limited increase on existing HGV traffic, it considers that the development 

would not have a material impact on the operation of the highway network.   

7.9 Southern Water: Highlights measures to protect public sewers and advises 

consultations with the Environment Agency and the County Council’s technical 
staff.  

7.10 High Weald AONB:  Highlights policies and guidance for the County Council to 

take into account in determining the application.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



7.11 Network Rail: Has no comments to make, but advises discussion regarding 

the site’s close proximity to rail infrastructure     

7.12 Sussex Police: Crime prevention advice is provided, noting the benefits of 

secure perimeter fencing, lighting, and CCTV.  

8. Representations  

8.1 The application was publicised in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, 
including the erection of six site notices around the application site and in the 
village of Balcombe.  In response, 805 objections were received from third 

parties, 6 making comments and 4 no objections.  

8.2 The main issues raised through objections include:   

 Impacts of the flare on human health and the environment;  

 That drilling at site will set a precedent that would promote oil exploration 
throughout the Weald;  

 Adverse impact on local biodiversity;  

 Greenhouse gas emissions from the flare, vehicles and produced fuel will 

contribute to climate change;  

 Adverse impact upon the amenity of Balcombe residents; 

 Detriment to air quality will damage the health of local residents; 

 Groundwater contamination; 

 Highways concerns including regarding the size of vehicles entering the site 

and the damage they could cause to roads; 

 That Balcombe village voted in 2014 to oppose any exploration on the site; 

 That vehicles passing by Balcombe Primary school would be a danger and 

detrimental to physical/mental health of residents; 

 That the Council has “pledged to step up work to combat climate change”; 

 Objecting to fracking; 

 Concerns regarding production and disposal of toxic waste; 

 Heavy industry not being allowed in the AONB; 

 Emissions (surface water runoff, gas, leakage) from the site which could 
have a detrimental affect on surrounding landscapes;  

 The applicant not being economically sound; 

 Use of acid to break rock is fracking, just not with high pressure fluids 

(technology and proposal needs checking); 

 24 hour operation being too impactful on residential amenity and road 
network; 

 Earth tremors which could damage the footings of the viaduct/train-line; 

 Approval undermining nationwide targets; 

 There being no policy to support the application following the removal of 
Paragraph 209(a) from the NPPF. 

 That trust in the technical expertise of Angus is low; 

Page 34

Agenda Item 4



 The development completely changing the character of the village and 

surrounding area; 

 The stress created to the village and that this will outweigh the small benefit 

the application will give to onshore hydrocarbon production; and 

 The risk of community disruption, civil unrest and protests. 

9. Consideration of Key Issues  

9.1 The main material considerations in relation to this application are:  

 the need for the development;  

 whether it is ‘major development’ and, if it is, whether there are exceptional 

circumstances and it is in the public interest to permit it; 

 whether there are alternative sites;  

 the impact on highway capacity and road safety;  

 the impact on amenity and public health;  

 the impact on the water environment; 

 the impact on landscape and visual amenity; and 

 the impact on ecology. 

Need for the Development 

9.2 The JMLP seeks to make provision for oil and gas development, recognising the 
national commitment to maintain and enhance energy security in the UK, 

provided that there are no unacceptable impacts on the environment and local 
communities.   

9.3 In considering the need for minerals in general, the NPPF notes that “it is 
essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to provide the 
infrastructure, buildings, energy and goods that the country needs” and that 

“…minerals are a finite natural resource, and can only be worked where they 
are found…” (NPPF paragraph 203).  Paragraph 205 requires that in 

determining planning applications, minerals planning authorities “give great 
weight to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to the economy”, though 

this must be balanced against the weight given to environmental impacts of a 
development. 

9.4 Paragraph 124 of PPG: Minerals which relates specifically to the demand for 

oil/gas, states:  

“Mineral planning authorities should take account of Government energy 

policy, which makes it clear that energy supplies should come from a 
variety of sources.  This includes onshore oil and gas, as set out in the 
Government’s Annual Energy Statement published in October 2013”. 

9.5 The Annual Energy Statement referred to in this paragraph notes that energy 
policy is underpinned by the need to reduce carbon emissions, and to ensure 

energy security (paragraph 1.1).  It makes it clear that while renewable energy 
must form an increasing part of the national energy picture, oil and gas remain 
key elements of the energy system for years to come (paragraph 3.69).  The 

Annual Energy Statement 2014 takes the same approach. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/254250/FINAL_PDF_of_AES_2013_-_accessible_version.pdf


9.6 Broader energy policy is set out in the UK’s Overarching National Policy 

Statement for Energy 2011 (EN-1) which relates to Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Projects.  However, case law confirms it is a material 

consideration when determining planning applications.  At paragraphs 2.2.5 and 
2.2.6 it states that:  

”The UK economy is reliant on fossil fuels, and they are likely to play a 
significant role for some time to come.  Most of our power stations are 
fuelled by coal and gas.  The majority of homes have gas central heating, 

and on our roads, in the air and on the sea, our transport is almost wholly 
dependent on oil.  However, the UK needs to wean itself off such a high 

carbon energy mix: to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and to improve 
the security, availability and affordability of energy through diversification.”   

9.7 Weighed against this, it also states that ”some fossil fuels will still be needed 

during the transition to a low carbon economy” (paragraph 2.2.23). 

9.8 The Statutory Security of Supply Report 2020 by the Department for Business, 

Energy and Industrial Strategy, sets out technical statistics on the “availability 
of electricity and gas for meeting the reasonable demands of consumers in 
Great Britain”.  It indicates that the production of oil/gas increased by 1.9% 

compared with 2018, with indigenous production at its highest level since 2010. 

9.9 An up-to-date picture of the Government’s energy policy is provided by Energy 

White Paper: ‘Powering our Net Zero Future’ (December 2020), which sets out 
the Government’s policies and commitments regarding UK energy strategies 
whilst striving for net-zero emissions by 2050.  The White Paper is clear that 

“The UK’s domestic oil and gas industry has a critical role in maintaining the 
country’s energy security and is a major contributor to our economy”.   

9.10 The Energy White Paper is the latest and most up-to-date guidance and is a key 
material consideration.  Therefore, it is concluded that although there are 
alternative sources of supply, both indigenous and imported, there is a clear 

need for onshore oil and gas development to contribute to national energy 
security.   

9.11 The NPPF gives ‘great weight’ to the benefits of mineral extraction, including to 
the economy and highlights that minerals can only be worked where they are 
found.  PPG: Minerals notes that energy supplies should come from a variety of 

sources and that oil and gas will continue to form part of the national energy 
supply.  The latest national energy policy indicates that the oil and gas industry 

has a critical role in maintaining the country’s energy security and economy.  
On balance, therefore, it is concluded that there is a need for the development 

to contribute to national energy security and supply.   

Major Development? 

9.12 Policy M7a of the JMLP states, in relation to oil/gas development in 

AONBs/South Downs National Park:  

“(a) Proposals for exploration and appraisal for oil and gas, not involving 

hydraulic fracturing, including extensions to existing sites will be 
permitted provided that:  

(i) With regard to development proposals deemed to be major, the site 

is located outside the South Downs National Park, High Weald AONB 

Page 36

Agenda Item 4



or Chichester Harbour AONB unless it has been demonstrated that 

there are exceptional circumstances and that it is in the public 
interest, and in accordance with Policy M13 [protected landscapes].”  

9.13 This reflects paragraph 172 of the NPPF, relating to development in 
AONBs/National Parks, which states that “planning permission for major 

development should be refused other than in exceptional circumstances, and 
where it can be demonstrated to be in the public interest”.  

9.14 With the site being in the High Weald AONB, it is necessary to first consider 

whether the proposal is deemed to be ‘major’ development.  

9.15 Footnote 55 of the NPPF provides guidance on this matter, noting that 

determination of whether something is a ‘major development’ is “a matter for 
the decision maker, taking into account its nature, scale and setting, and 
whether it could have a significant adverse impact on the purposes for which 

the area has been designated or defined.”  

9.16 Policy M13(a)(ii) of the JMLP provides additional clarity, noting that proposals 

for mineral development in the AONB will not be permitted unless:  

“ii. the proposal is for a small-scale development to meet local needs that can 
be accommodated without undermining the objectives of the designation; 

9.17 This confirms that ‘small scale’ development is considered to be that which 
meets local needs.  The extraction of hydrocarbons is undertaken to meet a 

national rather than local need, so the present proposal cannot be considered to 
‘small scale’ development.  

9.18 In addition, supporting paragraph 8.3.9 of the JMLP states that “small scale 

developments potentially include ancillary developments such as weighbridges, 
offices, haul roads, and other minor amendments to existing planning 

permissions”.  The proposed use would not be ancillary in nature or a minor 
amendment to an existing permission, so is not considered to fall within these 
guidelines.   

9.19 It is of note that the 2014 and 2017 applications were both considered to be 
‘major development’, despite being for a shorter period of time, with less 

activity.  The extended well test proposed in this application would last for up to 
twelve months, potentially with activity over much of the duration.  Given these 
factors, and the site’s location outside of the defined built-up boundary, it is 

concluded that the proposal is ‘major development’ for the purposes of Policies 
M7a and M13 of the JMLP and paragraph 172 of the NPPF.  

9.20 Having determined that the proposal is ‘major development’, the proposal 
needs to be assessed against part (c) of Policy M13 relating to major 

development in protected landscapes which states:  

“Proposals for major minerals development will not be permitted within 
protected landscapes unless there are exceptional circumstance and 

where it is in the public interest by assessment of: 

i) The need for the development, including terms of any national 

considerations, and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, 
upon the local economy; 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



ii) the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the 

designated area, or meeting the need for the mineral in some 
other way; and 

iii) any potential detrimental impact on the environment, 
landscape, and recreational opportunities, and the extent to 

which identified impacts can be satisfactorily mitigated.” 

9.21 Policy M13 reflects the fact that a ‘high bar’ is set by national policy for major 
development in protected landscapes, which requires an assessment of whether 

there are exceptional circumstances, and the development is in the public 
interest.  This assessment is informed by a consideration of the matters set out 

in the three sub-paragraphs of Policy M13(c). 

9.22 The first part of sub-paragraph (i) is discussed in paragraphs 9.2–9.11 of this 
report.  In essence, it is concluded that there is a role for hydrocarbon 

exploration to help maintain the country’s energy security.   

9.23 With regard to the second part of sub-paragraph (i), this asks whether there 

would be a direct impact upon the local economy by either permitting or 
refusing the development.  To address this requirement, the application 
submission contains a Socio-Economic Report that considers the impact of 

permitting the development on the local economy.   

9.24 At 6.3 of the Socio-Economic Report, it indicates that, if approved and 

implemented, the development has the potential to put some £1.7 million into 
the local economy.  Having queried this figure, it has now been refined down to 
£815,000 potentially locally sourced.  Although significantly lower, it still 

indicates that there would be a positive impact upon the local economy should 
the development be carried out.   

9.25 With regard to sub-paragraph (ii), it is important to consider the particular 
constraints on the development of oil reserves compared to the extraction of 
other minerals (that would be considered under Policy M13).  As identified in 

paragraph 9.32, operators can only explore within the area of their PEDL and, 
therefore, there is limited ‘scope’ for them to develop elsewhere.  Furthermore, 

the presence of hydrocarbons may not be uniform across the PEDL area.  In 
this specific case, the applicant has stated that no other sites in the PEDL area 
have evidence of the presence of hydrocarbons and there is also an element of 

technical closure, that is, the target hydrocarbons may not be present in the 
whole PEDL area.   

9.26 There is also a need under sub-paragraph (ii) to consider the ‘cost’ of 
developing a new site within the PEDL area but outside the AONB.  This cost 

would be considerable compared to the cost of using an existing, already 
drilled, well site that accesses the target hydrocarbons.  Furthermore, there is 
no guarantee that a new exploration site would find a viable hydrocarbon 

resource. 

9.27 With regard to ‘meeting the need for the mineral in some other way’, it is 

acknowledged that oil reserves have been found elsewhere in the County, and 
beyond, outside the AONB.  There are also alternative sources of indigenous and 
imported hydrocarbon supply that could meet the national need for 

hydrocarbons.  Nevertheless, should proven hydrocarbons be found viable at this 
site, it would still help to contribute to the national need for oil and gas. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 4



9.28 Furthermore, given the decline in North Sea oil reserves and the volatility of the 

international oil market, the potential to develop on-shore oil reserves has been 
seen as increasingly important nationally in order to provide greater diversity and 

security of supply.  For this reason, the exploration of on-shore sources, which 
are potentially of strategic significance, is important with regard to diversity and 

security in the national supply chain.  

9.29 With regard to sub-paragraph (iii), the development would be temporary, after 
which the site would be restored (or retained while an application for further 

works is prepared).  As addressed elsewhere in Section 9 of this report, while 
there would be some adverse impacts on the environment, landscape, and 

recreational opportunities, it is considered that they could be satisfactorily 
mitigated.  

9.30 In summary, in relation to the assessment required under Policies M7(a) and 

M13(c), it is considered that there is a national need for the development and 
there would be a benefit to the local economy.  Although there are alternative 

sources of local and national supply, the operator is constrained by the extent 
of the PEDL area.  Furthermore, the cost of developing a new well outside the 
AONB, which may not be successful, weighs in favour of the continued use of 

the existing well site.  Although there are some adverse impacts, these could be 
satisfactorily mitigated through planning conditions.  Taking all these factors 

into account, the overall assessment is that there are exceptional circumstances 
and the development is in the public interest.   

Alternative Sites? 

9.31 The need to consider alternative sites for hydrocarbons (and thereby the need 
for this particular site to be used) is set out in Policy M7(a)(ii): 

“the site selected represents an acceptable environmental option in 
comparison to other deliverable alternative sites from which the target 
reservoir can be accessed, taking into account impacts from on-site 

activities and off-site activities including HGV movements.”  

9.32 For oil and gas, options for consideration of alternative sites are limited to those 

that can ‘tap’ into the identified reserve.  As operators can only explore within 
the area of their PEDL, it is considered reasonable to limit evaluation of 
alternative sites to a single PEDL area. 

9.33 The application site is within PEDL Block 244, the area of which defines the 
‘search area’ for the purposes of this application.  There are currently two 

hydrocarbon sites in the PEDL area: the application site (including Balcombe-1, 
the original well drilled in 1987) and Bolney-1, a gas site 3.7 miles south of the 

site.  The latter was drilled in 1963 but has not been in operation for many 
years.  Balcombe-1, within the drill pad of the application site, was drilled in 
1987, with a new borehole (Balcombe-2) drilled in 2013, with recent 

permissions allowing exploration and appraisal.  

9.34 By using this site, the operator could make use of existing, site-specific 

geological data, and utilise the borehole drilled in 2013 and the associated 
infrastructure on site.  As the drilling of a borehole has some of the most 
significant impacts of the oil exploration process, it is considered use of the 

current site would be beneficial in reducing costs and impacts on people and the 
environment when compared with an alternative, new site.  Further, the PEDL 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



area is almost entirely within the AONB, so it is likely that alternative sites that 

could access the target reservoir would also need to be located within the 
AONB.  

9.35 The site is, therefore, considered to represent an acceptable environmental 
option, when compared against other potentially deliverable, alternative sites 

from which the target reservoir can be accessed, in accordance with Policy M7a 
(a)(ii).  For the avoidance of doubt, this conclusion solely relates to comparing 
the use of the site with the creation of a new site in the PEDL area, which is 

considered likely to result in greater environmental harm. 

9.36 The proposed development is located with the High Weald AONB.  However, 

with much of the PEDL area also within the AONB, it is considered the use of 
the site would represent an ‘acceptable environmental option’ when compared 
with developing a new site within the licenced area as the operator could utilise 

the existing borehole and associated data and infrastructure.   

Highway Capacity and Road Safety 

9.37 One of the key issues raised in objections to the application has been the 
impact of HGVs on the road network, in particular as they travel through 
Balcombe village.  

9.38 As already noted, the application site is located on the western side of the 
B2036 (London Road).  It has an existing upgraded bellmouth and access road 

that have been used for previous hydrocarbon operations, including the drilling 
in 2013.  

9.39 Table 1 of the Traffic Report 2020 (reproduced below) gives an approximation 

of HGV movements over the period of operations.  Although such movements 
are difficult to estimate, it indicates that the most intensive period of HGV 

movements would be during the mobilisation/de-mobilisation activities.  During 
these periods, there would be up to 16 two-way movements each day 
(approximately eight HGVs travelling to/from the site).   

Phase Activity Approximate 

Timescales 
(weeks) 

Estimated 

HGVs over 

period 

(two way 
movements) 

Maximum 

daily HGVs 

(two way 
movements) 

Average 

HGVs per 

week 

(two way 
movements) 

1 Mobilisation / 

equipment set up 

1 56 16 56 

1 Pumping (removal 

of drilling fluid 

2 40 4 20 

1 Demobilisation of 
equipment  

1 56 14 56 

2 Mobilisation of civil 

engineering 

1 34 14 34 

2 Earthworks and 

membrane 
installation 

7 112 4 16 

2 Demobilisation of 

civil engineering 

1 34 8 34 

Page 40

Agenda Item 4



Phase Activity Approximate 

Timescales 

(weeks) 

Estimated 

HGVs over 

period 

(two way 
movements) 

Maximum 

daily HGVs 

(two way 
movements) 

Average 

HGVs per 

week 

(two way 
movements) 

3 Mobilisation of well 

test equipment 

1 56 16 56 

3 Mechanically lift 

well / natural flow 

53 424 2 8 

3 Contingency N2 lift 2 72 12 36 

3 Contingency 

treatment (acid 
wash) 

2 65 12 34 

3 Contingency install 

(install plug) 

2 60 12 30 

3 Demobilisation of 

well test 

equipment 

1 56 16 56 

4 Plug and 
decommission well 

4 168 12 42 

4 Restoration 8 352 10 44 

 

9.40 WSCC Highways Officers have reviewed the technical documents in support of 

the application and raise no objection to the proposal, stating: 

”given the temporary nature of the movements and the limited average 

increase on existing HGV traffic for the duration of the flow test, it is not 
considered that the proposal will have a material impact on the operation of 
the network”.   

9.41 WSCC Highways Officers also note that the site access is acceptable, stating 
that although the Safety Audit carried out in 2010 has not been updated, the 

trip generation is not sufficient to warrant a new Audit being undertaken.   

9.42 It has been suggested in a number of representations that HGVs should be 
routed to/from the south of the site, via Whitemans Green, to avoid Balcombe 

village to the north, in particular the local school.  However, previous 
development has been routed to the north on the B2036, through Balcombe 

village, linking to Junction 10A of the M23, 7 kilometres north of the site.  The 
comparable route to the south would be 7.6 kilometres long.  In highways 
terms, the route north is preferable as it is more direct.  Both routes would 

travel past residential properties and other sensitive uses, but the disturbance 
is considered to be minimal, given the numbers of HGVs involved.  

9.43 To address concerns regarding impacts on Balcombe CofE Primary School, 
Highways Officers have recommended the imposition of a condition requiring a 

Traffic Management Plan that would restrict the timing of HGV movements.  

9.44 Concerns have been raised about the transport of hazardous waste through the 
village, including past the school.  However, it should be noted that the safe 

carriage of hazardous waste is not a matter for the planning system, but is 
covered by other regulations (the Carriage of Dangerous Goods and Use of 

Transportable Pressure Equipment Regulations 2009, regulated by the Health 
and Safety Executive)).  

Page 41

Agenda Item 4



9.45 The NPPF is clear in that, “Development should only be prevented or refused on 

highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, 
or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe”.  

Therefore, subject to a Traffic Management Plan, Highways Officers raise no 
objection to the development, noting that the development would not have a 

material impact on the operation of the highway network in safety or capacity 
terms. 

9.46 Overall, it is considered that the development is acceptable in terms of its 

impact on the highway network, subject to the imposition of a condition 
requiring a Traffic Management Plan.   

9.47 The proposed development would result in increased HGV movements on the 
B2036 and other roads throughout the course of the development.  However, 
the increase in HGV traffic would not be significant in highways terms and 

would not result in an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or a severe 
impact on the road network.  WSCC Highways Officers raise no objection to the 

proposal, concluding that the increase in vehicle movements is not sufficient to 
materially impact on the operation of the highway network in safety or capacity 
terms, subject to the imposition of a condition requiring the submission and 

approval of a Traffic Management Plan.   

Impact on Amenity and Public Health 

9.48 A key concern raised in objections is the potential impact of the development 
on public health and the amenity of local people.  

9.49 The nearest dwelling to the site is a Kemps Farm, 350 metres north and the 

nearest residential street, Oldlands Avenue, is 780 metres north.  

9.50 The site sits at a lower topographical level (around 59 metres above ordnance 

datum (AOD)) than the village (generally rising to the north and east from 100 
metres AOD) and the railway line.  Ancient Woodland and farmed woodland 
separate the site from Kemps Farm.  Both the site and Kemps Farm abut the 

B2036 to the west and are close to the railway corridor to the east.  

9.51 The key potential impacts on amenity and public health resulting from the 

proposed development are likely to be increased noise and reduced air quality.  

Noise 

9.52 The development has the potential to result in increased noise at residential 

properties through the use of plant such as the nodding donkey/linear pump 
rod, wheeled mobile crane and the generators, in addition to vehicle 

movements to, from, and within the site.  

9.53 The flaring of gas can be a noisy operation, depending on how much gas is 

produced, but it can be controlled, as required, by ‘throttling back the flow’.  In 
addition, the flare is confirmed to be enclosed, helping to minimise noise 
impacts.  Although the flare would be a 24 hour operation, working measures 

can help to minimise noise.  It is, therefore, considered that noise impacts from 
the flare are controllable.  

Page 42

Agenda Item 4



9.54 Calculations submitted as part of the Noise Mitigation Plan indicate that the 

noise impact from the remainder of the plant and equipment including 
generators would not be significant.  

9.55 A condition could be included to secure a Noise Mitigation Plan, as used during 
2018 operations, which would require the applicant to provide details of 

‘instantaneous mitigation measures’ such as throttling back the gas flow, and in 
extreme cases, ceasing operations until appropriate action is taken (unless it is 
unsafe to do so).  Noise monitoring could also be undertaken continuously 

during operations by the applicant, with results submitted to the County Council 
on a weekly basis, but also on request.  In the event that noise emissions do 

cause a problem, a condition could be used requiring submission of a Noise 
Management Plan to identify the mitigation measures to be put in place and the 
timescale for doing so.  

9.56 Mid Sussex District Council have raised no objection subject to the submitted 
Noise Management Plan being adhered to and the suggested conditions in 

Appendix B.  

9.57 Under these circumstances and given the controls that the proposed conditions 
could give, it is not considered that the proposal would result in adverse noise 

impacts on residential amenity.  

9.58 The site set-up operations and demobilisation, as well as most of the plugging 

and abandonment works would be undertaken during the day (from 07.00–
19.00 Monday to Friday, and 08.00 to 13.00 on Saturdays), with HGV 
movements being between 07.30–18.30 Monday to Friday, and 08.00 to 13.00 

on Saturdays.  With conditions setting a limit for noise emissions from the site, 
and a condition controlling the hours of HGV movements, it is considered that 

the potential for noise impacts could be limited satisfactorily.  

9.59 Working hours for different operations period have been stated by the 
applicant.  However, many of these could be undertaken as ‘permitted 

development’, without restriction on hours of operation.  It would not be 
appropriate, therefore, to impose a planning condition restricting these hours as 

it would not meet the legal tests for a planning condition.  However, the 
operator would still be subject to the ‘nuisance’ requirements regulated by 
Environmental Health officers, which would ensure impacts are not detrimental 

to human health.   

Air Quality 

9.60 Concern has been raised in third party objections about the potential impact of 
the flare on air quality and human health.  

9.61 The flare would be on site for the duration of the flow testing and pressure 
monitoring to dispose of natural gas, a by-product of oil exploration which it not 
always viable to use.  

9.62 PPG: Minerals (paragraph 112) is clear that the flaring or venting of gas is 
subject to DECC (now the Oil & Gas Authority) controls and is regulated by the 

Environment Agency, with Minerals Planning Authorities needing to consider 
only “how issues of noise and visual impact will be addressed”.  It is clear, 
therefore, that the potential impact of the flaring of gas on air quality is not a 

matter for the County Council. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4



9.63 However, in leaving this issue to other regimes, PPG: Minerals also makes it 

clear that the Minerals Planning Authority must be satisfied that the issues can 
or will be addressed by taking advice from the relevant regulatory body 

(paragraph 112).  The Environment Agency has commented on the application 
and has raised no objection.  In addition, the Environment Agency has 

highlighted to the applicant that the proposal may require an additional or 
variation to the existing Environmental Permit.  

9.64 The development also has the potential to result in impacts on air quality 

through increased traffic on the road to and from the site.  However, the levels 
of vehicles associated are not considered to be significant enough to reduce air 

quality, particularly given the temporary nature of the vehicle movements and 
the small increase over existing HGV numbers already on the local highway 
network.  

9.65 Taking the above into account, it is concluded that the potential impact of the 
development on air quality is satisfactory, particularly given the controls in 

place through the Environmental Permitting regime. 

9.66 The development has the potential to adversely affect residential amenity and 
health, primarily through increased noise and emissions to air.  In terms of 

noise, there is a potential for the flare and plant on site to result in noise 
disturbance.  However, it is considered that this could be adequately controlled 

by conditions requiring monitoring, and remediation if levels are exceeded.  The 
development has the potential to result in impacts on air quality through the 
flare, and an increase in vehicles travelling to and from the site.  However, 

emissions from the flare are controlled by the Environmental Permit that applies 
to the operations.  The potential impact of increased vehicle numbers is not 

considered to be significant as numbers are relatively low, and for temporary 
periods.  

Impacts on the Water Environment  

9.67 One of the key issues raised in objections to the proposal is the potential 
impact on the water environment.  PPG: Minerals notes that “surface, and in 

some cases ground water issues”, should be addressed by minerals planning 
authorities as well as flood risk and water (paragraph 13).  The impact on the 
water environment is, therefore, a material planning consideration.  

9.68 The site is not within a groundwater Source Protection Zone (SPZ), with the 
nearest of these 2.3 km north-west of the site, without an abstraction licence to 

pump water (though 20m3 can be abstracted without such a licence).  Previous 
applications have confirmed that there are no licenced groundwater 

abstractions within 3km of the site.  There are, however, small streams as close 
as 15 metres from the site access road.  

9.69 The site lies on Wadhurst Clay which is 47 metres thick and classified as 

‘unproductive strata’ because it is identified as being generally unable to 
provide usable water supplies and unlikely to have surface water and wetland 

dependent upon them.  The clay also acts as a natural barrier to the migration 
of either groundwater or gases between permeable strata.  

9.70 Below the clay are the Ashdown Beds of 212 metres’ thickness, a ‘Secondary 

Aquifer’ formed of fine-grained silty sandstone and mudstone.  Again, previous 
applications have noted that this contains naturally high levels of methane, but 

Page 44

Agenda Item 4



that due to geology and well construction this does not pose a risk to 

groundwater.  Below the Ashdown Beds is another layer of Kimmeridge Clay, 
below which are the hydrocarbon-bearing Micrite Beds into which the lateral 

well extends.  

9.71 In considering the potential impacts on the water environment, it is important 

to note that the County Council must assume that other, non-planning regimes 
operate effectively (PPG: Minerals, paragraph 112).  In relation to water, this 
means assuming that the construction, design and operation of the borehole 

have been undertaken appropriately, in accordance with Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE) requirements.  It also means assuming that the Environment 

Agency will ensure that surface equipment operates satisfactorily, and that 
mining waste and NORMs are appropriately managed.  

9.72 Nonetheless, as already noted, paragraph 112 of PPG: Minerals notes that 

before granting permission the County Council will need to be satisfied that the 
issues dealt with under other regimes can be adequately addressed ‘by taking 

advice from the relevant regulatory body’.  The County Council has consulted 
with the Environment Agency and HSE, neither of which has objected.  

9.73 The main risks to the water environment are due to run-off from the surface of 

the site.  For any development, it is important to ensure that fluids, particularly 
where they are potentially polluting, are managed within the site.  For this 

development, impacts on water quality would be mitigated by ensuring 
potentially polluting activities are undertaken on an impermeable surface with 
sealed drainage system.  A condition could be added requiring the submission 

and approval of a Construction Method Statement detailing: the inspection of 
the existing containment measures; remediation or replacement of the 

containment measures; containment construction and quality assurance and 
future inspection and maintenance.  Fuel tanks and chemicals stored outside of 
the impermeable area would have their own bunded containers, as is common 

practice in industry and agriculture.  

9.74 It is considered these mechanisms would ensure that surface water is 

protected.  

9.75 Details of surface and foul water drainage are matters which could be required 
by conditions and which would ensure that the site does not increase the risk of 

flooding off-site, and that foul waste is managed appropriately.  

9.76 The main risks to groundwater are through failure of the well casing, leaking of 

chemicals and hydrocarbons, and through migration of liquid from the borehole.  
All of these matters are addressed through regulation by the Environment 

Agency and HSE.  The Environment Agency has considered the site’s location in 
terms of a range of issues including geology and hydrogeology, and protected 
sites and species.  The HSE consider the potential interaction with nearby wells, 

as well as geological strata and the fluid within them.   

9.77 Concerns have been raised regarding the use of hydrochloric acid in the 

‘acidisation’ process.  However, this is regarded as standard procedure in the 
cleaning of boreholes for not just oil and gas development but also more 
generally for many drinking water boreholes.   

9.78 Taking the above into account, it is considered that subject to the imposition of 
appropriate conditions the development does not pose a risk to the water 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



environment.  Therefore, it accords with criterion (a)(iii) of Policy M7a of the 

JMLP, which seeks to, among other things, minimise impacts on the water 
environment, and criterion (a)(v) which requires that “no unacceptable impacts 

arise from the on-site storage or treatment of hazardous substances and/or 
contaminated fluids above or below ground”.  

9.79 Although the potential impact of the development on the water environment is 
a material consideration, PPG: Minerals, paragraph 12 notes that mineral 
planning authorities must assume that non-planning regimes operate 

effectively.  This means assuming that the well is constructed and operated 
appropriately, that surface equipment operates satisfactorily, and that waste 

and NORMs are appropriately managed in accordance with other regulatory 
regimes.  The Environment Agency and Health and Safety Executive are the 
regulatory agencies for these matters.   

9.80 The risk to surface water would be minimised by carrying out activities on an 
impermeable membrane with a sealed drainage system.  With regards to 

groundwater, it must be assumed that the well is constructed and operated to 
the appropriate standards.  It is, therefore, concluded that the development 
does not pose a risk to the water environment, either at the surface or 

groundwater.  

Impact on Landscape and Visual Amenity 

9.81 Policy M12 of the JMLP seeks to protect the character, distinctiveness and sense 
of place of different areas of the County and, in this particular case, to protect 
the setting and character of the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB), which has the highest status of protection and wherein ‘great weight’ 
must be given to conserving and enhancing the landscape and scenic beauty, 

while also giving weight to the benefits of minerals extraction. 

9.82 The physical development would involve the use of a 40m crane (which would 
be on-site for up to ten days), a flare measuring 13.8 metres in height (which 

would be on-site for the duration of the Extended Well Test), and site 
infrastructure including portacabins, tankers, pumps and generators.  The site 

is currently enclosed with a two-metre high security fence, which would be 
retained.  As already noted, the operation of the site would involve the 
movement of HGVs to/from the site, as well as on-site works involving the 

movement and operation of various types of equipment.  

9.83 The applicant has submitted ‘viewpoint photographs’ indicating the potential 

impact of the development, albeit the workover rig shown would not be used, 
and photographs were taken in spring, rather than winter when the ‘worst case 

scenario’ would be apparent with trees/plants not in leaf (see Appendix 5: 
Viewpoint Photo). 

9.84 The photographs indicate that the crane, pump and flare, and the upper parts 

of the security fence would be visible from London Road at the site entrance, 
and from an agricultural entrance north of this.  Some views would also be 

possible from the Public Right of Way some 300m to the north (footpath 13Ba).   

9.85 There is the potential for impact on the character of the area and visual 
amenity, particularly by virtue of the flare being on site until the completion of 

the well test, and the disturbance created by an industrial-style operation being 
undertaken in a countryside location.  However, on balance, it is not considered 

Page 46

Agenda Item 4



that these impacts are unacceptable and, therefore, the proposal accords with 

Policy M12 of the JMLP.  

Impact on Ecology 

9.86 The application site abuts Ancient Woodland to the north and south, as well as 
beyond the railway corridor to the east and beyond the B2036 to the west.  It is 

otherwise relatively distant from any ecological designations, being located 800 
metres south-east of the Rowhill Copse Local Nature Reserve and 1,100 metres 
south-west of the Ardingly Reservoir Local Nature Reserve.  

9.87 There are several Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within 5 kilometres 
of the site. Wakehurst and Chiddlingly SSSI is 2,300 metres north-west of the 

site; Cow Wood and Harry’s Wood SSSI is 3,200 metres west of the site; Worth 
Forest SSSI is 3,800 metres north of the site and Philpot’s and Hook Quarry 
SSSI is 4,600 metres north-east of the site.  Beyond this, Ashdown Forest 

Special Protection Area (SPA) is 8.9km east of the site.   

9.88 WSCC’s Ecology Officers reviewed the submitted ecological assessments and 

have raised no objection to the proposal, subject to conditions seeking a 
lighting strategy and bat monitoring.  Natural England also raises no objection, 
providing Standing Advice (referred to in Natural England’s consultee response) 

which forms an integral part of their assessment of the application.   

9.89 Taking the above into account, it is considered that the impacts of the proposed 

development can be contained within the site to ensure that habitats and 
species are not adversely affected.  The development thereby accords with 
criterion (a)(iii) of Policy M7a of the JMLP, which seeks to minimise 

unacceptable impacts on, among other things, the natural environment, and 
Policy M17 of the JMLP, which seeks to minimise harm to biodiversity.  

9.90 The proposed development is adjacent to ancient woodland, and there are a 
number of Sites of Special Scientific Interest in the local area, though relatively 
distant from the site, each more than 2,000 metres away.  A key concern 

relates to the potential impact on bats.  However, WSCC’s Ecology Officers have 
raised no objection, subject to conditions to control lighting on the site, and bat 

monitoring.  It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms 
of its potential impact on ecology.  

10. Overall Conclusion and Recommendation  

10.1 This application seeks an extended well test for hydrocarbon development for 
up to 12 months, in addition to other short-term activities, at an existing site 
within the High Weald AONB.   

10.2 The NPPF gives ‘great weight’ to the benefits of mineral extraction and national 
guidance notes that energy supplies should come from a variety of sources, 

including oil and gas.  On balance, and taking account of the latest national 
energy policy, it is concluded that there is a need for the development to 
contribute to national energy security and supply. 

10.3 With regard to the acceptability of the development in this sensitive location, it 
is considered that the application is for ‘major development’.  Therefore, 

following an assessment in accordance with Policies M7 and M13 of the JMLP, it 

Page 47

Agenda Item 4



has been concluded that there are exceptional circumstances and it is in the 

public interest for the application to be permitted.   

10.4 As above, it considered that there is a national need for the development and, 

furthermore, there would be a benefit to the local economy.  Although there are 
alternative sources of local and national supply, the operator is constrained by 

the extent of the PEDL area and it is considered the use of the site would 
represent an ‘acceptable environmental option’ when compared with developing 
a new site within the licenced area, which would be more expensive and with no 

guarantee of success.  

10.5 The extended well test and associated activities have the potential to result in 

adverse impacts on the highway, local communities, landscape character and 
the local environment, issues that have been raised in the large number of 
objections to the application.  Balcombe Parish Council has objected to the 

application, but no other statutory consultees have objected, subject to the 
imposition of conditions and having regard to relevant policy and guidance.   

10.6 It is concluded that the number of vehicles required to carry out the 
development is not significant enough to raise concerns regarding highway 
capacity or road safety.  Emissions from the development would be controlled 

through the planning regime as well as through the Environmental Permitting 
and health and safety regimes which would ensure that water quality would not 

be compromised and that emissions to air would be acceptable.   

10.7 The High Weald AONB has the highest level of protection, with the NPPF 
directing authorities to give ‘great weight’ to conserving its landscape and 

scenic beauty, in addition to giving ‘great weight’ to the extraction of minerals.  
On balance, it is considered that the impact of the proposed development on 

the AONB, and the character of the area in general, would not be unacceptable.   

10.8 Overall, although the proposed development would have some adverse impacts, 
it is considered that they could be satisfactorily mitigated through the 

imposition of appropriate planning conditions.   

10.9 On balance, in light of the above assessment and taking account of the changes 

to the proposed development (in particular the shorter duration of the 
operations proposed compared with the previous application), the additional 
information submitted by the applicant, and changes to national energy policy, 

the revised application is considered to accord with the policies in the 
development plan (in particular, Policies M7 and M13 of the JMLP) and, 

therefore, it is acceptable. 

10.10 It is, therefore, recommended that planning permission is granted subject to 

the conditions and informatives set out at Appendix 1. 

11. Consultation 

11.1 See Sections 7 and 8.  

12. Resource Implications and Value for Money 

12.1 Not applicable. 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 4



13. Equality and Human Rights Assessment 

13.1 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act.  Officers 
considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 

responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the proposal 
would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups with 

protected characteristics.  Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were 
required to make it acceptable in this regard. 

13.2 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 
rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 

prevents the County Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with 
those rights.  Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for 

an individual’s private life and home save for that interference which is in 
accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the interests 

of (inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the country.  Article 1 
of protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful enjoyment of their property 
shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the public interest. 

13.3 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 

means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised.  
The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any 

identifiable interference with these rights.  The Planning Considerations 
identified are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is 
proportionate.  Case law has been decided which indicates that certain 

development does interfere with an individual’s rights under Human Rights 
legislation.  This application has been considered in the light of statute and case 

law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 

13.4  The Committee should also be aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the 
purpose of this committee) is the determination of an individual’s civil rights 

and obligations.  Article 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an 
individual is entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an 
independent and impartial tribunal.  Article 6 has been subject to a great deal 

of case law.  It has been decided that for planning matters the decision-making 
process as a whole, which includes the right of review by the High Court, 

complied with Article 6. 

14. Risk Management Implications 

14.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that 
the determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the 

policies of the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  If this is not done, any decision could be susceptible to an 
application for Judicial Review. 

15. Crime and Disorder Reduction Assessment 

15.1 There are no implications. 

16. Social Value and Sustainability Assessment 

16.1 Not applicable. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 4



Michael Elkington 

Head of Planning Services 

Contact Officer: Chris Bartlett, Principal Planner, 0330 222 6946 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Conditions and Informative 

Appendix 2 – Site Location Plan 

Appendix 3 – Existing Site Plan 

Appendix 4 – Proposed Site Plan 

Appendix 5 – Viewpoint Photo 

Background Papers 

See Section 6. 

Page 50

Agenda Item 4



Appendix 1: Conditions and Informative 

CONDITIONS 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990. 

Time Limitations 

2. The Extended Well Test (Phase 3) hereby approved shall be completed and cease 

within a period of twelve months from the date of commencement of 
development.  

Reason: To ensure that the impacts are limited to the timeframe considered in 

granting the planning permission.  

Notification of Works 

3. Prior written notification of the date of commencement of each phase of works 
(removal of fluids, pad membrane works and the extended well test) hereby 

approved shall be sent to the Minerals Planning Authority not less than seven 
days and no more than 14 days before commencement of each Stage 1 Activity. 

Reason: To inform the Minerals Planning Authority of potential disruptive periods 

in the interests of amenity. 

Completion of Works 

4. Notification of the date of the completion of the extended well test hereby 
approved shall be sent to the Minerals Planning Authority not more than seven 
days following completion.  Within twelve months of the completion of the 

extended well test, the operator shall restore the site in accordance with the 
scheme approved under Condition 5. 

Reason: To secure the timely restoration of the site. 

Approved Plans 

5. The proposed development shall not take place other than in accordance with the 

approved drawings and documents:  

 Figure 1: Site Location Plan (Rev 01);  

 Figure 2: Existing Site Plan (Rev 01);  

 Proposed Site Plan (dwg HSF-BALCOME-SL-01);  

 Proposed Site Plan (dwg HSF-BALCOME-SL-02);  

 Figure 4a: Proposed Elevation – View from North West (Rev 03);  

 Retention Plan (dwg 32414-RSK-XX-XX-DR-L-1000; and 

 Restoration Planting Plan (dwg 32414/01/01 Rev-01) 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4



save as varied by the conditions hereafter.  For the avoidance of doubt, high 

pressure hydraulic fracturing shall not be undertaken as part of this development.  

Reason: To secure a satisfactory development. 

Decision Notice  

6. A copy of this decision notice together with the approved plans and any schemes 

and/or details subsequently approved pursuant to this permission shall be kept 
at the site office at all times and the terms and contents thereof shall be made 
known to supervising staff on the site. 

Reason: To ensure the site operatives are conversant with the terms of the 
planning permission. 

Lighting Strategy  

7. Development shall not begin until a Lighting Strategy, assessed by a suitably-
qualified ecologist, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Minerals 

Planning Authority. The Lighting Strategy shall include:  

a) Re-assessment by suitably-qualified ecological consultant of the impact of 

the site’s lighting regime on the surrounding vegetation at night within 7 
days of its installation;  

b) Measures for immediate remedial action should the assessment carried out 

at (a) indicate that light spill exceeds 1 lux; and 

c) Within 14 days of the installation of site lighting, submission to the Minerals 

Planning Authority of a report detailing the impact of the lighting on the 
surrounding vegetation. The report shall detail lighting measurements 
(carried out in accordance with (a)), remediation undertaken and its 

impact, and the type and timescale of further remediation which may be 
required to ensure light spill onto adjacent vegetation is less than 1 lux. 

The approved Lighting Strategy shall thereafter be implemented in full.  

Reason: to protect the ecology of the area, particularly bats. 

Traffic Management Plan 

8. Development shall not begin, including any works of mobilisation, until a Traffic 
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Minerals 

Planning Authority.  The Plan shall provide details as appropriate but not 
necessarily be restricted to the following matters: 

 the anticipated number, frequency and types of vehicles used during the 

development;  

 the method of access and routing of vehicles; 

 the parking of vehicles by site operatives and visitors; 

 the loading and unloading of plant, materials and waste;  

 the storage of plant and materials used in the development;  

Page 52

Agenda Item 4



 the erection and maintenance of security hoarding (if relevant);  

 the provision of works required to mitigate the impact of the development 
upon the public highway (including the provision of temporary Traffic 

Regulation Orders);  

 details of public engagement both prior to and during the development; 

 traffic management schemes such as restrictions on timings, associated 
signage etc.; and 

 measures to ensure that HGV movements avoid school pick-up and drop-

off times.   

The approved Plan shall be implemented and adhered to throughout the 

development.   

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the area.  

Hours of HGV Movements 

9. With the exception of undertaking urgent works in emergency situations, the 
movement of all HGVs to/from the site shall only be undertaken between the 

hours of 07:30 and 18:30 Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.  
No HGV movements shall occur on Sundays, Bank Holidays and Public Holidays.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents.  

Noise Levels 

10. The corrected* noise level for operational noise from the site shall not exceed 

55dB(A) LAeq,5 minutes (free-field) between the hours of 07:00 – 19:00 
Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 – 13:00 Saturdays; shall not exceed Background 
LA90,1 hour + 10dBA evenings (19:00-22:00) and weekends and shall not 

exceed 42dB(A) LAeq,5-minutes free-field at night (22:00-07:00). Noise levels 
shall be determined at the nearest residential premises. 

* A 5dB correction shall be added to the LAeq noise level to provide a corrected 
noise level if one or more of the following features occur: 

 the noise contains a distinguishable, discrete, continuous note (whine, hiss, 

screech, hum, etc.) 

 the noise contains distinct impulses (bangs, clicks, clatters or thumps) 

 the noise is irregular enough to attract attention 

Reason: In the interests of residential amenity. 

 Noise Monitoring 

11. Noise levels shall be monitored at Kemps Farm at weekly intervals from the date 
of the commencement of development. The results of the monitoring shall include 

LA90 and LAeq noise levels, the prevailing weather conditions, details and 
calibration of the equipment used for measurement and comments on other 

sources of noise which affect the noise climate. The monitoring shall be carried 

Page 53

Agenda Item 4



out for at least 2 separate durations during the working day and the results shall 

be submitted to the Minerals Planning Authority within 3 days of the monitoring 
being carried out.  If the results indicate that the noise levels exceed those set 

out in Condition 10 the mitigation detailed in Condition 12 shall be implemented 
within 48 hours. 

Reason:To minimise the impact on residents and the environment.  

Noise Management Plan  

12. Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall submit to, and 

have approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority a Noise Management 
Plan. The Plan shall identify:  

 Details of initial noise tests for each item of noise-emitting plant on site to 
establish whether noise emissions are compliant with condition 10;  

 If not compliant, details of what mitigation would be introduced and 

timescales for implementation;  

 Details of instantaneous mitigation methods for each item of noise-

emitting equipment (e.g. throttling back gas flow for the flare, stopping 
works where safe to do so) and any longer term mitigation;   

 Detail of continuous monitoring procedure to monitor noise limits;  

 Procedures for addressing any complaints received.  

Once approved, the Noise Management Plan shall be implemented in full 

throughout the course of the development.   

Reason: To minimise the impact on residents and the environment.  

Reversing Alarms 

13. Vehicles within the operator’s control, including those required to visit the site 
under contract that are required to emit reversing warning noise, shall use only 

white noise/broadband alarms rather than single tone alarms. 

 Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents. 

Bat Monitoring 

14. Prior to the commencement of development or any preparatory works a bat 
monitoring strategy shall be submitted to the Minerals Planning Authority for 

approval.  The monitoring strategy will be expected to start within 7 days of this 
permission being implemented and will continue through the lifetime of the 
permission and for one year after site closure.  All approved details shall be 

implemented in full unless otherwise approved in writing by the Minerals Planning 
Authority.  All identified adverse impacts on bats shall be reported to the relevant 

site operators and the Minerals Planning Authority and ameliorated immediately. 
Annual reports and a final report (one year after permitted operations cease) 

shall be produced and submitted to the Minerals Planning Authority. 

Reason: to assess the impact of the development on bat activity.  

Page 54

Agenda Item 4



INFORMATIVES 

A.   The Minerals Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in 
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material 
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that may have 

been received and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in 
accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set 

out within the National Planning Policy Framework.  

Page 55

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA
Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right (2017)

Figure 1:
Site Location Plan

TITLE:

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 P:
\66

00
00

 - E
PD

 Pr
oje

cts
\66

12
80

 - P
I\0

0 G
rap

hic
s\0

1 -
 G

IS\
BA

L_
Fig

1_
Sit

e_
Lo

ca
tio

n_
Pla

n.m
xd

Coordinate System: British National Grid
Projection: Transverse Mercator
Datum: OSGB 1936
Units: Meter

Legend:
Site Boundary - Above Ground
Works
Site Boundary - Below Ground
Works

0 100 200 300 400

Metres /

Rev Date Description

REV 01

01 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
02 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
03 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
04 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA

00 03/10/2017 First Draft

530000 531000 532000
12

80
00

12
90

00
13

00
00

SCALE: @ A31:10,000

Balcombe 2z Hydrocarbon Well Testing

01 10/10/2017 Scale change

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Figure 2:
Existing Site Plan

TITLE:

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 P:
\66

00
00

 - E
PD

 Pr
oje

cts
\66

12
80

 - P
I\0

0 G
rap

hic
s\0

1 -
 G

IS\
BA

L_
Fig

2_
Ex

ist
ing

_S
ite

_P
lan

.m
xd

Coordinate System: British National Grid
Projection: Transverse Mercator
Datum: OSGB 1936
Units: Meter

Legend:
Site Boundary - Above Ground
Works
Site Boundary - Below Ground
Works
Existing Site Security Fencing
Borehole

OS MasterMap Class
Manmade Surface
Natural Surface
Inland Water
Artificial Slope
Coniferous Trees
Nonconiferous Trees
Scrub
Railway Land - Manmade
Road
Track
Verge

0 10 20 30 40

Metres /

Rev Date Description

REV 01

01 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
02 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
03 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA
04 10/10/2017 Description Change AA AA AA

00 02/10/2017 First Draft

B2036 (London Road)

530900 531000 531100 531200
12

91
00

12
92

00
12

93
00

12
94

00

SCALE: @ A31:1,250

Balcombe 2z Hydrocarbon Well Testing

© Crown copyright, All rights reserved. 2017 License number 0100031673
© OpenStreetMap (and) contributors, CC-BY-SA
Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right (2017)

01 10/10/2017 BH, Fence and Legend edits

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
roject:

T
itle:

Balcom
be 2z

H
ydrocarbon

W
ell Testing

Proposed Site Plan

D
raw

in
g N

o:    H
SF-BA

LC
O

M
E-SL-01

REV
D

ESC
RIPTIO

N
                            D

A
TE       BY

  0
For Review

23-04-18
G

TS CA
D

D
ate:              18th Septem

ber 2019

  1
Increase bund area

14-05-18

  2
W

ell Test U
pdate

03-09-18
H

2O
il

  3
C

T U
pdate

10-09-18

G
TS CA

D

G
TS CA

D

  4
A
s installed

27-09-18
G

TS CA
D

B2036 (London Road)

1
9

1
7

1
21
1

1
1

1
0

1
8

2
0

7

6
1

6

KO drum

SSV
CMW

ELL TEST

W
ORKSHO

P

POW
ERPACK

SK11745

5
5

4
4

Halliburton Coiled Tubing Package

C
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L H
O

U
S

E
M

C
T

1
6H

O
3

0
0

0
x2

1
4

0
x2660

7
,5

00

P
A

N
T

H
E

R
 P

U
M

P
7

7
2

0
x2

4
0

0
x3000

5
2

3
2

x5
6

5
0

x4300
S

P
L

IT
 R

E
E

L
 S

P
O

O
LE

R
P

S
L

1
4

785
1

2
,0

00

1
0

8
0

6
9

8
0A

/B
2

2
,0

00

4
5

7
0

x2
9

7
0

x4570
S

P
L

IT
 R

E
E

L D
R

U
M

P
S

L
2

0
858

1
2

,0
00

P
O

W
E

R
 P

A
C

K
S

K
1

1
745

7
6

5
0

x2
4

5
0

x3250
1

6
,8

00

F
L

U
ID

 T
A

N
K

?
?

?
?

??
4

1
8

0
X

2
6

0
0

X
3070

1
6

,8
00

W
O

R
K

S
H

O
P

 C
O

N
T

A
IN

E
R

?
?

?
?

??
3

7
2

0
x2

4
3

0
x2430

1
0

,0
00

IR
O

N
 C

O
N

T
A

IN
E

R
?

?
?

??
3

7
2

0
x2

4
6

0
x2550

1
0

,0
00

N
IT

R
O

G
E

N
 C

O
N

V
E

R
T

O
R

?
?

?
?

??
6

0
0

0
x2

5
0

0
x3180

1
6

,5
00

N
IT

R
O

G
E

N
 T

A
N

K
S

 (x4)
9

2
9

6
0

x2
4

0
0

x2100
1

1
,0

00

L
E

G
E

N
D

 - H
a

llibu
rton

 C
o

ile
d

 T
u

bin
g

 P
a

ckag
e

8

Earth Bonding

Em
ergency

Exit

9
9

9
9

9

W
ORKSHOP

CONTAINERW
ORKSHOP

CONTAINER

FLUID
TANK

PANTHER

1
6

GEN

FLUID
PUM

P

2
2

2
1

DAQ
 LAB

15m
 radius

zone

S

S

S

2
3

Propane

Bottles

3

S

TANK

S
ite

 B
o

u
n

d
a

ry - A
bove G

round

S
ite

 B
o

u
n

d
a

ry - B
e

low
 G

round W
orks

F
en

ce

Im
p

e
rm

e
a

b
le

 M
em

brane

A
cid

 P
um

p

A
cid

 T
ank

O
il T

ank

F
low

b
a

ck T
ank

S
e

p
a

ra
to

r/S
u

rge tank

B
o

re
h

ole

C
o

ile
d

 tu
bing U

nit

N
itro

g
e

n T
ank

W
e

lfa
re

 C
a

b
in / Lockers

T
o

ile
t - S

how
ers

B
u

n
ke

r B
ins

M
D

L
 C

an
te

en

T
o

o
lp

u
sher

P
otab

le
 W

ater

S
kip

F
la

re

M
u

ste
r S

tation

C
a

r P
a

rking

C
ra

ne

IB
C

 (C
o

n
tainer)

A
cco

m
o

d
ation

1234567891
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
92
0

2
1

2
2

L
eg

en
d

Z
O

N
E

 1 =
 1.5m

Z
O

N
E

 2 =
 3m

F
IR

E
 E

X
T

IN
G

U
IS

H
E

R

A
S

S
E

M
B

L
Y

 P
O

IN
T

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E

F
IR

S
T

 A
ID

Z
o

n
e

d
 A

re
a

 C
a

lissification
in

 a
cco

rd
a

nce w
ith

A
P

I R
P

 5
0

0
 a

n
d A

P
I R

P
 505

E
Y

E
 W

A
S

H
 S

T
A

T
IO

N

E
S

C
A

P
E

 R
O

U
T

E

T
O

ILE
T

W
IN

D
 S

O
C

K

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 S

H
O

W
E

R

P
la

n
t S

p
a

cing
 based upon

A
P

I R
P

 1
2R

1 and
C

A
O

D
C

 IR
P

 20

S
P

ILL
 K

IT
S

O
ily W

a
ste S

tation
2

3

Page 61

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Fi
le

 R
ef

: 3
24

14
 - 

EP
D

  6
62

92
1 

Ba
lc

om
be

\0
0 

G
ra

ph
ic

s\
05

 - 
La

yo
ut

s\
 B

al
co

m
be

-W
ire

Fr
am

es
_J

un
e2

02
0.

in
dd

  R
ev

00

15/05/2020 Rev : 00 Balcombe Re-submission

Viewpoint 1 : Wireline view from B2036 London Road 

Figure: 2a
Viewpoint 1: Wireline View

Lower Stumble Exploration Site,
London Road, Balcombe

Viewpoint 1: 
NGR : 530980, 129130
Direction of View : 25º
Included Angle of View : 76º

Elevation Above OS Datum : 54m
Distance to Site Fence : 68m
Date of Photo : 7th April 2017
Time of Photo : 11:13am

Camera Height Above Ground : 1.6m
Correct Viewing Distance : 30cm at A3

Note:
Views of the 40m high crane above and between intervening woodland in winter 
should the coil tubing unit require deployment for 1-2 weeks during phase 3. 

Crane 
40m High

(Between Flare and Coil 
Tube Equipment)

Coil Tubing Unit
11.5m High

(Behind)

Enclosed Flare 
13.7m High
(Nearest)   

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 4
A

ppendix 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Update on Mineral, Waste and Regulation 3 Planning Applications 

Planning Committee date 2 March 2021 

Report by Strategic Planning, County Planning Manager 

Report run on 17 February 2021 

Table 1 - Minerals and Waste Planning Applications 

 
Type Reference 

(Case Officer) 
Applicant Proposal Location Member Date 

Valid 
Recommended 

determination 
date 

Extension 

Deadline 
Date 

Period 

post 
validation 

Update comments 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/066/19 
(Edward Anderson) 

Mr G Love Replacement of existing below 
ground drainage to provide an 
improved foul and waste 
drainage system for existing 
dwellings at the property, 
comprising the installation of new 
pipes, a new bio-digester and 
field drain 

Climping College  
The Mill 
Climping Street 
Climping 
BN17 5RN 

Mrs Jacky 
A 
Pendleton 

20/11/2019 19/02/2020 22/10/2020 455 Certificate B required to 

serve notice on access 
landowner. 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/080/19 
(Chris Bartlett) 

H Ripley & Co 
Ltd 

Variation of conditions 2, 8, 9 and 
12 of planning permission 
WSCC//037/18/CR to alter 
approved plans and documents 
relating to noise control, waste 
deliveries and skip and waste 
storage and non-compliance with 
condition 4 relating to access and 
discharge of Condition 5 relating 
to cycle parking 

International Park, 
Priestley Way, 
Northgate, 
Crawley 
RH10 9NT 

Ms Karen 
Sudan 

20/12/2019 10/04/2020 27/11/2020 425 Awaiting further 
drawings 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/001/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

Britaniacrest 
Recycling Ltd 

Variation of conditions 1,2,4,8,19 
and 22 of planning permission 
WSCC/009/18/SR to allow two 
further years’ extraction and 
restoration by 2028 

Washington Sand Pit 
Hampers Lane 
Sullington 
West Sussex 
RH20 3EX 

Mr Paul A 
Marshall 

06/01/2020 27/04/2020 18/09/2020 408 Awaiting Section 106 
Agreement 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/004/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

Mr Pearce Restoration of the former 
Standen Landfill site with a 
woodland and pasture landfill cap 
system 

Evergreen Farm 
West Hoathly Road 
East Grinstead 
RH19 4NE 

Mrs Jacquie 
E Russell 

24/01/2020 15/05/2020 08/01/2021 390 Further Information 

received.  Re-
consultation required 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 5



Type Reference 
(Case Officer) 

Applicant Proposal Location Member Date 
Valid 

Recommended 

determination 
date 

Extension 

Deadline 
Date 

Period 

post 
validation 

Update comments 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/019/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

Sir Charles 
Burrell 

Proposed construction of 
landscape enhancement features 
using imported inert material, 
together with the provision of 
public access and amenity; 
comprising revised landform and 
details to WSCC/029/18/SP 

Knepp Castle 
West Grinstead 
Horsham 
RH13 8LJ 

Mrs 
Amanda J 
Jupp 

07/04/2020 28/07/2020 20/11/2020 316 Awaiting Footpath 
Creation Agreement  

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/036/20 
(James Neave) 

Ford Energy 
from Waste, 
Grundon Waste 
Management, 
Viridor Waste 
Management 

Demolition of existing buildings 
and structures and construction 
and operation of an energy 
recovery facility and a waste 
sorting and transfer facility for 
treatment of municipal, 
commercial and industrial 
wastes, including ancillary 
buildings, structures, parking, 
hardstanding and landscape 
works 

Ford Circular 
Technology Park, 
Ford Road, 
Ford,  
Arundel 
BN18 0XL 

Mrs Jacky 
A 
Pendleton 

07/07/2020 05/01/2021 05/04/2021 225 Regulation 25 

requested for additional 
information issued. 
Awaiting the 
submission of 
additional information 
but understood that 
there may also be 
amendments to the 
submitted plans. 

County 
Matter 
Mineral 

WSCC/044/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

Aggregate 
Industries UK 
Ltd 

Amendment of Condition 1 of 
planning permission 
WSCC/039/17/SU to allow for the 
unloading, preparation and 
storage of mineral aggregates 
with concrete batching plant to 
continue until 27 September 
2021 

New Wharf 
Brighton Road 
Shoreham-By-Sea 
BN43 6RN 

Mr Kevin 
Boram 

17/08/2020 16/11/2020  184 Delegated report to be 
written 

County 
Matter 
Mineral 

WSCC/045/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

Angus Energy 
Weald Basin 
No.3 Ltd 

Remove drilling fluids and carry 
out an extended well test 

Lower Stumble 
Exploration Site, 
off London Road, 
Balcombe, 
Haywards Heath 
RH17 6JH 

Mr Bill 
Acraman 

26/08/2020 25/11/2020  175 This agenda 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/046/20 
(Edward Anderson) 

Five Oaks 
Farm 

Erection of a bund on the 
northern boundary 

Land at Five Oaks 
Farm, Haven Road, 
Five Oaks, Billingshurst 

Mr Christian 
R Mitchell 

23/09/2020 23/12/2020  147 To be reported to 
Committee 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/048/20 
(James Neave) 

A Hyatt 
Contractors Ltd 

Retrospective application for 
landfilling works 

Land to the north of 
CDEW Screening Site, 
Thistleworth Farm, 
Grinders Lane, 
Dial Post, West Sussex 
RH13 8NR 

Mr Lionel H 
Barnard 

12/10/2020 11/01/2021 22/02/2021 128 Awaiting comments 

from EHO and EA on 
Materials Analysis 
Report. 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 5



Type Reference 
(Case Officer) 

Applicant Proposal Location Member Date 
Valid 

Recommended 

determination 
date 

Extension 

Deadline 
Date 

Period 

post 
validation 

Update comments 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/050/20 
(Edward Anderson) 

Restoration to 
Agriculture Ltd 

Variation of conditions of 
planning permission 
WSCC/040/19 for an extension in 
time to complete infill and 
restoration and alterations to the 
approved scheme 

Rudgwick Brickworks, 
Lynwick Street, 
Rudgwick, 
Horsham, 
RH12 3DH 

Mr Christian 
R Mitchell 

15/10/2020 14/01/2021 19/02/2021 125 106 deed of variation 
with legal 

County 
Matter 
Waste 

WSCC/051/20 
(Edward Anderson) 

Restoration to 
Agriculture Ltd 

Variation of conditions of 
planning permission 
WSCC/004/19/RW for an 
extension in time to complete the 
approved remodeling of the 
landform and subsequent 
restoration scheme 

Rudgwick Brickworks, 
Lynwick Street, 
Rudgwick, 
Horsham, 
RH12 3DH 

Mr Christian 
R Mitchell 

15/10/2020 14/01/2021 19/02/2021 125 106 deed of variation 
with legal 

 

Table 2 – Regulation 3 Planning Applications 

Type Reference 
(Case Officer) 

Applicant Proposal Location Member Date 
valid 

Recommended 

determination 
date 

Extension 

Deadline 
Date 

Period 

post 
validation 

Update comments 

Regulation 
3 

WSCC/052/20 
(James Neave) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

The construction of a 1.3km single 
carriageway with a 3m wide 
shared cycleway/footway, 2.5m 
wide central island, one 
uncontrolled pedestrian crossing 
with a central island to enable 
users of the PRoW to cross the 
carriageway, three roundabouts, 
provision of hard and soft 
landscaping, road markings, traffic 
signals, bus stops, and signalised 
pedestrian crossings, construction 
of a substation building; installation 
of a noise barrier, and associated 
works 

Land to the north of 
Eastergate and north-
west of Barnham, 
PO22 0DF 

Mr Derek R 
Whittington 

28/10/2020 17/02/2021  112 Further information 
sought (EIA 
Regulation 25). 

 

Further consultation 
required upon 
receipt. 

Regulation 
3 

WSCC/055/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

Construction of new two storey 
Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND) College 
building with associated soft and 
hard landscaping, a floodlit all-
weather pitch, car parking and 
drop off/pick up facilities and 
alterations to existing access 
arrangements 

Woodlands Meed 
College, 
Birchwood Grove 
Road, Burgess Hill 
RH15 0DP 

Mrs Anne F 
Jones 

01/12/2020 02/03/2021  78 To be reported to 
Committee 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 5



Regulation 
3 

WSCC/058/20 
(Chris Bartlett) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

The installation of a 3.5m high 
acoustic fence along Fitzalan 
Road 

Fitzalan Road, 
East Street, 
Littlehampton 

Mr Ian J R 
Buckland 

16/12/2020 10/02/2021  63 Considering 

Consultation 
responses 

Regulation 
3 

WSCC/001/21 
(Tyra Money) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

Amendment to Condition 2 of 
planning permission 
WSCC/017/20 to alter the location 
of a fence, with changes to hard 
surfacing and landscaping 

Cissbury Lodge,  
The Boulevard, 
Durrington-on-Sea, 
Worthing BN13 1JX 

Mr Sean A 
McDonald 

04/01/2021 01/03/2021  44 Awaiting further 
information in regard 
to amended plans 

Prior 
Notification 

WSCC/003/21/PNO 
(Edward Anderson) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

The proposal is to install a 104.39 
kW solar PV system on the flat 
roof of the main school building 

Ifield Community 
College, 
Crawley Avenue, 
Crawley RH11 0DB 

Mrs Brenda A 
Smith 

11/01/2021 08/03/2021  37 Ready for determination 

Prior 
Notification 

WSCC/004/21/PNO 
(Edward Anderson) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

The proposal is to install a 190.90 
kW solar PV system on the flat 
roof of the main school building 

Oriel High School, 
Maidenbower Lane, 
Maidenbower, 
Crawley RH10 7XW 

Mr Bob A 
Lanzer 

11/01/2021 08/03/2021  37 Ready for determination 

Prior 
Notification 

WSCC/005/21/PNO 
(Edward Anderson) 

West 
Sussex 
County 
Council 

The proposal is to install a 190.90 
kW solar PV system on the flat 
roof of the main school building 

Thomas Bennett 
Community College, 
Ashdown Drive, 
Crawley RH10 5AD 

Mr Duncan 
Crow 

11/01/2021 08/03/2021  37 Ready for determination 

 P
age 68

A
genda Item

 5



Report of Delegated Action; Planning Applications approved subject to conditions 

Planning Committee date: 2 March 2021 

Report by Strategic Planning, County Planning Manager 

Decided between: Period: 21 January 2021 and 18 February 2021  

Report run on 18 February 2021 

Table 1 - Delegated Action – Planning Applications 

Application Type District Application No Proposal Location 

Regulation 3 Worthing WSCC/002/21 Replacement of existing play equipment 
and installation of 130m2 rubber mulch 
safety surface 

Elm Grove Primary School, 33 Elm Grove, 
Marine, Worthing BN11 5LQ 

 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Update on Creations and permissive path proposals, diversions and extinguishment 
applications and District Council consultations 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee date: 2 March 2021 

Report by Director of Highways, Transport and Planning, Place Services 

Decided between period: 17 August 2020 and 17 February 2021 

Abbreviations 

BW Bridleway  
BOAT Byway Open to All Traffic  

CL Common Land  
FP Footpath 
HA Highways Act 

RB Restricted Byway 
T&CPA Town and Country Planning Act 

TVG Town or Village Green 
 
Table 1 - Creations and permissive path proposals, diversions and extinguishment applications and District 

Council consultations 

Type Path Reference  Proposal Date 
Received  

Status  

S119 HA Diversion Ashurst FP 2502 Diversion of path from grazing land 

and place on fenced field boundary. 

21.01.16 Awaiting investigation 

Horsham DC S119 
HA Diversion 

consultation 

Billingshurst FP 
780-1 

Diversion of a short length of path 
onto a more southerly route away 

from a new hay and machinery store. 

11.12.20 Under investigation 

S119 HA Diversion Bosham FP 238 Diversion away from house and drive 

onto a more southerly route. 

25.07.16 Awaiting investigation 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7



Type Path Reference  Proposal Date 

Received  

Status  

S25 HA Path 

Creation Agreement 

Burgess Hill FP 

3736, 3737 

Agreement to upgrade existing 

footpaths to bridleway as part of the 
Mid Sussex District Council Green 

Circle Project. 

ongoing Under investigation 

S119 HA Diversion Cowfold FP 1733 Diversion of path from garden to 
place on adjacent field edge. 

04.05.14 Additional information 
requested 

S119 HA Diversion Eastergate FP 323 Network Rail proposal to divert path 
via underpass. 

16.02.15 Additional information 
required 

S119 HA Diversion Fulking FP 5-1 Diversion of path from close 

proximity to house. 

28.08.16 Awaiting investigation 

Mid Sussex DC S257 
Diversion 
consultation 

Hurstpierpoint 
FP14Hu 

Diversion of part of FP 14Hu to allow 
A2300 improvements, residential 
development and recreational 

access.  

09.02.21 Under investigation 

S119 HA Diversion Kirdford FP 614-1 Diversion of path from close 
proximity to house and place on a 
more northerly woodland route. 

11.07.13 Delayed awaiting drainage 
works - under 
investigation  

Permissive cycle 

rights agreement  

Midhurst FPs 

1104,1108,1103,1
101_1 

Landowner agreement to allow 

permissive cycle rights on existing 
public footpaths as part of the 

Midhurst Cycleway project. 

ongoing Under investigation 

S118A HA 

Extinguishment 

Pulborough FP 

2312 

Network Rail proposal to extinguish 

path. 

17.01.13 Awaiting investigation 

S26 HA Path 
Creation Order 

Selsey FP 76 Creation of bridleway rights on 
existing public footpath as part of a 

proposed new recreational link for 
walkers, horse riders and cyclists 
between Selsey and the Medmerry 

path network.  

ongoing Under investigation 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 7



Type Path Reference  Proposal Date 

Received  

Status  

Adur DC S257 

T&CPA Diversion 
consultation 

Shoreham 

Restricted Byway 
B 3157 

Diversion of RB to allow construction 

of flood defence wall, and flood gate 
across former Tarmount Hard. 

ongoing Under investigation 

S118A HA 

Extinguishment 

Southbourne/ 

Chidham/ 

Hambrook FP 258 

Network Rail proposal to extinguish 

path adjacent to Nutbourne Station. 

11.11.12 Additional information 

requested 

S119 HA Diversion Thorney FP 202 Diversion of approx. 1 kilometre of 

path badly affected by coastal 
erosion at Thorney Island onto a 
more secure, slightly inland route 

that is already used by walkers. 

22.07.20 Under investigation 

S119 HA Diversion West Wittering BW 
20 

Diversion of northern end of 
bridleway off of Berry Barn Lane to 

join B2179 at a more easterly point. 

07.06.13 Additional information 
requested 

S25 Path Creation 

Agreement 

Worth FP 2 Agreement to upgrade a length of 

existing footpath to bridleway as part 
of  a new cycleway linked to 

development.  

ongoing Under investigation 

Arun DC S257 
T&CPA Diversion 
consultation 

Yapton FP 326 Diversion of path to enable 
residential development – new route 
to be accommodated within the site. 

02.12.20 Under investigation 

 

Contact: Judith Grimwood, Countryside Services, ext. 26705 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of Delegated Actions; Creations and permissive path proposals, diversions and 
extinguishment applications and District Council consultations 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee date: 2 March 2021 

Report by Director of Highways, Transport and Planning, Place Services 

Decided between period: 17 August 2020 and 17 February 2021 

Abbreviations 

BW Bridleway  
BOAT Byway Open to All Traffic  

CL Common Land  
FP Footpath 
HA Highways Act 

RB Restricted Byway 
T&CPA Town and Country Planning Act 

TVG Town or Village Green 
 
Table 1 - Creations and permissive path proposals, diversions and extinguishment applications and District 

Council consultations 

Type Path Reference Proposal  District Date of Delegated 
Decision 

Horsham DC S257 

T&CPA Diversion and 
Stopping up 

consultation 

West Grinstead FP 

1847-1, 2372-1 

Proposal to stop up part of FP 

2372-1 and divert FP 1841-1 
westwards onto field edge to 

enable change of use to cross 
country equestrian facility with 
associated jumps and 

landscaping.  

Horsham No objection, by officer 

delegation 11.12.20. 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 8



Type Path Reference Proposal  District Date of Delegated 

Decision 

Horsham DC S119 HA 

Diversion consultation 

Thakeham FP 2487 Diversion to a more southerly 

route making a more direct 
connection to footpath 2480. 

Diversion to enable more 
effective management of 

farmland. 

Horsham No objection, by officer 

delegation 05.01.21. 

Horsham DC S257 

T&CPA Diversion 
consultation 

Shipley FP 2360 Diversion of path onto the 

southern and eastern sides of 
paddocks to the south east of 

Palacelands Farm to 
accommodate replacement 
dwelling. 

Horsham No objection, by officer 

delegation 28.01.21 

S25 HA Path Creation 

Agreement 

Billingshurst new 

footpath 

Landowner dedication of path 

linking existing FPs 1312 and 
1311 on east side of Lordings 

Lane via a direct crossing of the 
road to FP 827 on the western 
side.  

Horsham Proposal approved by 

officer delegation 
08.02.21 

 

Contact: Judith Grimwood, Countryside Services, ext. 26705 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 8



Update on Definitive Map Modification Order Applications and Town and Village Green 
Applications  

Planning and Rights of Way Committee date: 2 March 2021 

Report by Director of Law and Assurance 

Decided between period: 17 August 2020 and 17 February 2021 

Abbreviations 

BW Bridleway  
BOAT Byway Open to All Traffic  

CL Common Land  
FP Footpath 
RB Restricted Byway 

TVG Town or Village Green 
 

Table 1 - Definitive Map Modification Orders 

Application details  Reference 
number  

District Date 
application 
received 

Status  

Rogate: Addition of FP from FP 1162 

to join with DMMO 5/16 

DMMO 5/17 Chichester  31.10.17 Linked to an earlier 

application which is due to 
be heard at a virtual LPI 
on 22- 24 February 2021 

Yapton: Addition of RB off Drove 

Lane and upgrade of FP 155 to RB 

DMMO 5/18 Arun 19.04.18 Awaiting investigation – 

archive application  

Yapton: Upgrade of FP 157 to RB and 
addition of BW 

DMMO 6/18 Arun 19.04.18 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 9



Application details  Reference 

number  

District Date 

application 
received 

Status  

Yapton and Climping: Upgrade of FP 
166 and FP 165 to BW and the  

addition of BW 

DMMO 11/18 Arun 19.10.18 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

Horsham: Addition of 3 FPs in Piries 
Place 

DMMO’s 7, 8, 9 
and 10/18 

Horsham 05.02.18 Under investigation – User 
evidence  

West Wittering: Addition of BW from 

Redlands Lane to the B2179 at 
Malthouse Cottages (Sheepwash 
Lane) 

DMMO 3/19 Chichester  28.02.19 Awaiting investigation – 

User and archive 
application  

Henfield and Woodmancote: Upgrade 

FP 2540 to RB and addition of a RB 

DMMO 2/19  05.03.19 Awaiting investigation – 

archive application  

Bognor, Bersted and Felpham: 
Addition FPs: (1) commencing on 
Brooks Lane crossing the 

Aldingbourne Rife and continuing 
across 2 fields to Downview School; 

DMMO 4/19 Arun  23.05.19 Under investigation – User 
application   

Bognor, Bersted and Felpham: 

Addition of FPs: (2) commencing 
from path 1 cutting across the fields 
and continuing to Felpham Leisure 

Centre; and 

DMMO 5/19 Arun 23.05.19 Under investigation – User 

application   

Bognor, Bersted and Felpham: 
Addition of FPs: (3) a circular path 

around the main field adjacent to 
Aldingbourne Rife 

DMMO 6/19 Arun 23.05.19 Under investigation – User 
application   

Barnham and Flansham: Upgrade of 
FPs 146, 147 and part of 153 to BW 

and the addition of a BW 

DMMO 7/19 Arun 01.08.19 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application  

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 9



Application details  Reference 

number  

District Date 

application 
received 

Status  

Horsham: Addition of BW from 
Sedgwick Lane to BW1713 

DMMO 8/19 Horsham  14.10.19 Awaiting investigation – 
archive and user 

application 

Southwater: Addition of FP from 
Nutham Lane to Easteds Lane 

DMMO 9/19 Horsham 31.10.19 Under investigation – user 
application  

Walberton and Yapton: Addition of a 
FP east of Yapton Lane 

DMMO 1/20 Arun 15.01.20 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

Flansham: Addition of a RB at Hoe 

Lane Flansham 

DMMO 2/20 Arun 21.01.20  Awaiting investigation – 

archive application 

Arundel and Ford: Addition of a BW 
and upgrade parts of FPs 3403 & 
361-1 to BW 

DMMO 3/20 Arun 14.07.20 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

Bramber: Addition of a FP at Coombe 

Drove 

DMMO 4/20 Horsham  11.08.20 Awaiting investigation – 

user application 

Yapton: Addition of a BOAT along 
Grevatts Lane 

DMMO 5/20 Arun 14.07.20 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

Felpham: Addition of a FP at Sea 
Drive, Summerley Estate 

DMMO 6/20 Arun 21.10.20 Awaiting investigation – 
user application 

Felpham: Addition of a FP at Hinde 

Road Twittern, Summerley Estate 

DMMO 7/20 Arun  21.10.20 Awaiting investigation – 

user application 

Felpham: Addition of a FP at 

Rudgwick Way, Summerley Estate 

DMMO 8/20 Arun 21.10.20 Awaiting investigation – 

user application 

Addition of a RB from GR 539604, 
130496 to GR 539669, 130531 

(known as Twyford Splash) (cross 
border applicaton with ESCC) 

DMMO 9/20 Mid Sussex 01.12.20 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

Horsted Keynes: Addition of a RB 
linking School Land and Birchgrove 

Lane  

DMMO 10/20 Mid Sussex 09.12.20 Awaiting investigation – 
archive application 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 9



Table 2 – Town and Village Green Applications  

Application details  Reference 

number  

District Date of 

application 

Status  

Shipley: Application to register land 
known as Rascals Wood Field as a 
Village Green 

TVG 31/50 Horsham  28.11.19 Non Statutory Inquiry 
held 19 – 22 January 
2021.  Inspectors report 

awaited. 

Billingshurst: Land known as 
Broomfield Willow Green 
Billingshurst 

TVG 30/51 Horsham  27.10.20  

 

Contact: Ami Dye, Legal Services, ext. 22687 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 9



Report of Delegated Actions; Definitive Map Modification Orders and Town and Village 
Green Applications 

Planning and Rights of Way Committee date: 2 March 2021 

Report by Director of Law and Assurance 

Decided between period: 17 August 2020 and 17 February 2021 

Abbreviations 

BW Bridleway  
BOAT Byway Open to All Traffic  

CL Common Land  
FP Footpath 
RB Restricted Byway 

TVG Town or Village Green 
 

Table 1 - Town and Village Green Applications 

Application Type Application details  Reference number  District Date of delegation and 
decision 

VG – Removal of Land 
from the register of 

Village Green  

Removal from the 
Register of Town or 

Village Green land at 
Kingston Beach, 
Shoreham by Sea  

VG51 Adur 22.09.20 

Application approved and 
land removed from the 
register. 

 

Contact: Ami Dye, Legal Services, ext 22687 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting of the Committee
	4 Planning Application: Minerals
	PlngRoW_02.03.21_WSCC04520_App_2
	PlngRoW_02.03.21_WSCC04520_App_3
	PlngRoW_02.03.21_WSCC04520_App_4
	PlngRoW_02.03.21_WSCC04520_App_5

	5 Update on Mineral, Waste and Regulation 3 Planning Applications
	6 Delegated Action - Planning Applications
	7 Current Applications and Actions - Path Orders and Consultations
	8 Delegated Actions - Path Orders and Consultations
	9 Current Applications - Definitive Map Modification Orders and Town and Village Green Applications
	10 Delegated Actions - Definitive Map Modification Orders and Town and Village Green Applications



